
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2023 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. FY21-22 Audit (Forvis)
b. Kiwanis Miniature Train Update (Kiwanis Club of Goldsboro)

4. NEW BUSINESS
c. 2024 Goldsboro City Council Meeting Dates (City Clerk)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Pastor Stanley Kelly, Fellowship Baptist Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of November 6, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Recognizing Goldie Smith for Service on the HACG for More Than 18 Years 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
C. Citizen Participation Plan Amendment – Public Hearing (Community Relations)

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
D. Resolution Approving Application for Funding Offered by the NCDEQ Division of Water Infrastructure

for the Lead and Copper Inventory Project (Engineering) 
E. Ordinance establishing the City of Goldsboro Cemetery Perpetual Care Trust Fund (1113) (Finance)
F. Ordinance amending the Quint Aerial Fire Truck Capital Project Fund (F3111) (Finance)
G. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Police Other Restricted Revenue Funds (P3104) (Finance)
H. Goldsboro Christmas Parade – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
I. Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina (City Clerk)
J. Departmental Monthly Reports

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION
K. 2023 NC State Appropriations Act Funding Allocation (City Manager’s Office)

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN

K.  Downtown Lights Up Date Change

hjones
Cross-Out



FORVIS Report to the  City Council and
Management

City of Goldsboro

Results of the 2022 Financial Statement Audit, Including Required
Communications

June 30, 2022

Required Communications Regarding Our Audit Strategy & Approach (AU-C
260)

Overview & Responsibilities

Matter Discussion

Scope of Our
Audit

This report covers audit results related to your financial statementsand supplementary information:

 As of and for the  year ended June 30, 2022.

 Conducted in accordance with our contract dated June 6, 2023

Our
Responsibilities

FORVIS is responsible for forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial statements
that have been prepared by management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP)

Audit Scope &
Inherent
Limitations to

Reasonable
Assurance

An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP)and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States (GAGAS) is designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about the
financial statements. The scope of our audit tests was established in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole  and did not include a detailed audit of all transactions.

Extent of Our
Communication

In addition to areas of interest and noting prior communications made during other phases of the
engagement, this report includes communications required in accordance with GAAS that are
relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing the financial reporting
process, including audit approach, results, and internal control. The standards do not require the
auditor to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to be communicated with
those charged with governance.

Independence The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

City of Goldsboro 1 Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

w.s. item a



Matter Discussion

Your
Responsibilities

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance of your responsibilities.
Your responsibilities and ours are further referenced in our contract.

Distribution
Restriction

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the following and is not intended
to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties:

 City Council and Management

 North Carolina State Treasurer's Local Government Commission

Government Auditing Standards

Matter Discussion

Scope of Our
Audit

This report covers audit results related to your financial statementsand supplementary information:

 As of and for the  year ended June 30, 2022. 

 Conducted in accordance with our contract dated June 6, 2023

Our
Responsibilities

FORVIS is responsible for forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial statements
that have been prepared by management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP)

Uniform Guidance Overview & Responsibilities

Matter Discussion

Scope of Our
Audit

We also provided reports as of June 30, 2022, on the following as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors
in North Carolina issued by the Local Government Commission:

 Opinion on compliance for each major federal and state award program

 Reports on internal control over compliance

 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Audit Scope &
Inherent
Limitations to 
Reasonable
Assurance

A compliance audit performed in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance and the Audit Manual for
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina and the State Single Audit Implementation Act is designed
to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Compliance
Supplements made available for state programs by the North Carolina Local Government
Commission that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state award program
occurred. 

City of Goldsboro 2 Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies & Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the audited financial statements.

With respect to new accounting standards adopted during the year, we call to your attention the following topics detailed
in the following pages:

 GASB 87Leases

Unusual Policies or Methods

With respect to significant unusual accounting policies or accounting methods used for significant unusual transactions
(significant transactions outside the normal course of business or that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their timing,
size, or nature), we noted the following:

 No matters are reportable 

Alternative Accounting Treatments

We had discussions with management regarding alternative accounting treatments within GAAP for policies and practices
for material items, including recognition, measurement, and disclosure considerations related to the accounting for
specific transactions as well as general accounting policies, as follows:

 No matters are reportable 

Management Judgments & Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, based on its judgments.
Significant areas of such estimates for which we are prepared to discuss management’s estimation process and our
procedures for testing the reasonableness of those estimates include:

 Management's estimate of the depreciable lives of capital assets is based on the expected useful lives of

individual capital assets

 Management's estimate of the liabilities related to the pension plans and other post-employment benefits

("OPEB"), as well as the related deferred inflows and outflows of resources, are based on actuarial assumptions

and projections that are provided by third parties based on information provided by management

 Management's estimate of the liability for claims incurred but not reported ("IBNR") which are based on

information provided by third parties based on information provided by management.

 Management's estimate of the terms and discount rates used for discounting lease receivables and lease

liabilities, which are based on assumptions surrounding the City's incremental borrowing rates

Financial Statement Disclosures 

The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we are prepared to discuss the
issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those disclosures:

 No matters are reportable 

City of Goldsboro 3 Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



Our Judgment About the Quality of the Entity’s Accounting Principles 

During the course of the audit, we made the following observations regarding the Entity’s application of accounting
principles:

 No matters are reportable 

Significant Accounting Policies & Alternative Treatments – Details

GASB 87, Leases

Effective July 1, 2021, the Entity adopted GASB 87, Leases. GASB 87 creates one model for recognizing leases for both
lessees and lessors. Substantially all leases are recognized on the lessee’s statement of net position. 

In the activity statement, lessees no longer report rent expense for the previously classified operating leases but instead
report interest expense on the liability and amortization expense related to the asset. Lessors recognize a lease
receivable and corresponding deferred inflow of resources. Interest income associated with the receivable are recognized
using the effective interest method.

Adoption of GASB 87 required significant time to identify a complete list of lease contracts for consideration of adoption
and measure the lease assets and liabilities for recognition. In addition, due to adoption of the standard, the Entity’s key
performance indicators related to the statement of net position (such as the current ratio) are likely not comparable to
historical results.

Adjustments Identified by Audit

During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement amounts. Management
evaluates our proposals and records those adjustments that, in its judgment, are required to prevent the financial
statements from being materially misstated.

A misstatement is a difference between the amount, classification, presentation, or disclosure of a reported financial
statement item and that which is required for the item to be presented fairly in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

Proposed & Recorded Adjustments 

Auditor-proposed and management-recorded entries include the following:

 No matters are reportable 

Uncorrected Misstatements 

Some adjustments proposed were not recorded because their aggregate effect is not currently material; however, they
involve areas in which adjustments in the future could be material, individually or in the aggregate. 

Uncorrected audit misstatements pertaining to the latest period presented that were determined by management to be
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, but more than trivial to the financial statements as a whole are included
as an attachment to this communication.

While these uncorrected misstatements were deemed to be immaterial to the current-year financial statements, it is
possible that the impact of these uncorrected misstatements, or matters underlying these uncorrected misstatements,
could potentially cause future-period financial statements to be materially misstated.

City of Goldsboro 4 Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



Other Required Communications

Disagreements with Management

The following matters involved disagreements which if not satisfactorily resolved would have caused a modified auditor’s
opinion on the financial statements:

 No matters are reportable

Consultation with Individuals Outside of the Engagement Team

During our audit, we encountered the following matters, for which we consulted the views of individuals outside of the
engagement team:

 No matters are reportable

Consultation with Other Accountants

During our audit, we became aware that management had consulted with other accountants about the following auditing
or accounting matters:

 No matters are reportable

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

Our audit requires cooperative effort between management and the audit team. During our audit, we found significant
difficulties in working effectively on the following matters:

 No matters are reportable

Other Material Communications

Listed below are other material communications between management and us related to the audit:

 Management representation letter (see Attachments)

We orally communicated to management other deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit that are not
considered material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

City of Goldsboro 5 Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



Attachments

Management Representation Letter (Appendix A)

As a material communication with management, included herein is a copy of the representation letter provided by
management at the conclusion of our engagement.

Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements (Appendix B)

The detail of uncorrected misstatements identified as a result of our engagement are included herein.

City of Goldsboro 6 Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



Appendix A

Management Representation Letter

City of Goldsboro Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



Representation of:
City of Goldsboro
200 North Center Street
Goldsboro, NC  27530

Provided to:
FORVIS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
1829 Eastchester Drive
High Point, North Carolina  27265

The undersigned (“We”) are providing this letter in connection with FORVIS’ audit of our financial
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Our representations are current and effective as of the date of FORVIS’ report: November 20, 2023.

Our engagement with FORVIS is based on our contract for services dated: June 6, 2023.

Our Responsibility & Consideration of Material Matters

We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements subject to
FORVIS’ report in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies; establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, operations, and compliance; and preventing and detecting fraud. 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
material as a result of qualitative factors.

Confirmation of Matters Specific to the Subject Matter of FORVIS’ Report

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following: 

Broad Matters

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of our contract, for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of:

a. Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

b. Internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

3. We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as financial records and related data,

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 2

documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. All minutes of governing body meetings held through the date of this letter or summaries of
actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. All unsigned
copies of minutes provided to you are copies of our original minutes approved by the
governing body, if applicable, and maintained as part of our records. 

e. All significant contracts.

4. We have responded fully and truthfully to all your inquiries.

Government Auditing Standards

5. We acknowledge that we are responsible for compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

6. We have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements that have a direct and material effect on the determination of amounts in our
financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

7. We have identified and disclosed to you any violations or possible violations of laws, regulations,
including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits and any related debt covenants whose effects
should be considered for recognition and/or disclosure in the financial statements or for your
reporting on noncompliance.

8. We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance
audits, or other studies related to the objectives of your audit and the corrective actions taken to
address any significant findings and recommendations made in such audits, attestation
engagements, or other studies.

Federal and State Awards Programs (Uniform Guidance and North Carolina State Single Audit
Implementation Act)

9. We have identified in the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards all assistance
provided (either directly or passed through other entities) by federal and state agencies in the
form of grants, contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property, cooperative agreements, interest
subsidies, commodities, insurance, direct appropriations, or in any other form.

10. We have disclosed to you all contracts or other agreements with service organizations, and we
have disclosed to you all communications from the service organizations relating to
noncompliance at the service organizations.

11. We have reconciled the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (SEFSA) to the
financial statements.

12. Federal and state awards-related revenues and expenditures are fairly presented, both in form
and content, in accordance with the applicable criteria in the entity’s financial statements.

13. We have evaluated all recipient organizations that received federal and state funding and have

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 3

correctly identified all subrecipients on the SEFSA.

14. We have identified the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act regarding activities allowed or unallowed; allowable cost principles; cash
management; eligibility; equipment and real property management; matching, level of effort,
earmarking; period of performance; procurement and suspension and debarment; program
income; reporting; subrecipient monitoring; and special tests and provisions that are applicable
to each of our federal and state awards programs. We have identified to you our interpretation of
any applicable compliance requirements subject to varying interpretations.

15. We are responsible for complying, and have complied, with the requirements of Uniform
Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

16. We are responsible to understand and comply with the requirements of federal and state
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal and state awards related to each of
our federal and state awards programs and have disclosed to you any and all instances of
noncompliance with those requirements occurring during the period of your audit or subsequent
thereto to the date of this letter of which we are aware. Except for any instances of
noncompliance we have disclosed to you, we believe the entity has complied with all applicable
compliance requirements.

17. We are responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls over
compliance that provide reasonable assurance we have administered each of our federal and
state awards programs in compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of the federal awards.

18. We have made available to you all federal and state awards (including amendments, if any) and
any other correspondence or documentation relevant to each of our federal and state awards
programs and to our compliance with applicable requirements of those programs.

19. The information presented in federal and state awards program financial reports and claims for
advances and reimbursements is supported by the books and records from which our financial
statements have been prepared.

20. The costs charged to federal and state awards are in accordance with applicable cost principles.

21. The reports provided to you related to federal and state awards programs are true copies of
reports submitted or electronically transmitted to the federal awarding agency, the applicable
payment system, or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient.

22. Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) regarding cost principles.

23. We have monitored any subrecipients to determine that they have expended federal awards in
accordance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward and
have met the audit and other requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

24. We have taken appropriate corrective action on a timely basis after receipt of any subrecipient’s
auditor’s report that identified findings and questioned costs pertaining to federal and state
awards programs passed through to the subrecipient by us, as applicable.

25. We have considered the results of any subrecipient’s audits received and made any necessary

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 4

adjustments to our books and records, as applicable.

26. We have disclosed to you any communications from federal and state awarding agencies and
pass-through entities concerning possible noncompliance with the applicable compliance
requirements for each of our federal and state awards programs, including any communications
received from the end of the period of your audit through the date of this letter.

27. We have identified to you any previous compliance audits, attestation engagements, and internal
or external monitoring related to the objectives of your compliance audit, including findings
received and corrective actions taken to address any significant findings and recommendations
made in such audits, attestation engagements, or other monitoring.

28. The reporting package does not contain any protected personally identifiable information.

29. No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance subsequent
to the period covered by the auditor’s reports.

Misappropriation, Misstatements, & Fraud

30. We have informed you of all current risks of a material amount that are not adequately prevented
or detected by our procedures with respect to:

a. Misappropriation of assets.

b. Misrepresented or misstated assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of resourses, net position or fund balance.

31. We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving: 

a. Management or employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial
reporting, or

b. Others when the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

32. We understand that the term “fraud” includes misstatements arising from fraudulent financial
reporting and misstatements arising from misappropriation of assets. Misstatements arising from
fraudulent financial reporting are intentional misstatements, or omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users. Misstatements arising
from misappropriation of assets involve the theft of an entity’s assets where the effect of the theft
causes the financial statements not to be presented in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

33. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity
received in communications from employees, former employees, customers, analysts, SEC or
other regulators, short-sellers, suppliers,  or others.

34. We have assessed the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result
of fraud and disclosed to you any such risk identified.

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 5

Ongoing Operations

35. We have evaluated whether there are conditions or events known or reasonably knowable,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as
a going concern within one year of the date of this letter without consideration of potential
mitigating effects of management’s plans not yet fully implemented and concluded substantial
doubt does not exist. 

Related Parties

36. We have disclosed to you the identity of all of the entity’s related parties and all the related-party
relationships of which we are aware.

In addition, we have disclosed to you all related-party transactions and amounts receivable from
or payable to related parties of which we are aware, including any modifications during the year
that were made to related-party transaction agreements which existed prior to the beginning of
the year under audit, as well as new related-party transaction agreements that were executed
during the year under audit.

Related-party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. 

37. We understand that the term related party refers to:

 Affiliates

 Entities for which investments are accounted for by the equity method

 Trusts for the benefits of employees, such as pension and profit-sharing trusts that are

managed by or under the trusteeship of management

 Management and members of their immediate families

 Any other party with which the entity may deal if one party can significantly influence the

management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting

parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. 

Another party is also a related party if it can significantly influence the management or operating
policies of the transacting parties or if it has an ownership interest in one of the transacting
parties and can significantly influence the other to an extent that one or more of the transacting
parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests.

The term affiliate refers to a party that directly or indirectly controls, or is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the entity. 

Litigation, Laws, Rulings & Regulations 

38. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial statements. The effects of all known actual or
possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

39. We have provided you with all examination reports, agreements and related correspondence
from regulatory agencies and any related findings.

40. We have no knowledge of communications, other than those specifically disclosed, from
regulatory agencies, governmental representatives, employees, or others concerning

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 6

investigations or allegations of noncompliance with laws and regulations, deficiencies in financial
reporting practices, or other matters that could have a material adverse effect on the financial
statements.

41. We have disclosed to you all known instances of violations or noncompliance or possible
violations or suspected noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency. 

42. There are no regulatory examinations currently in progress for which we have not received
examination reports.  

43. We have not been designated as a potentially responsible party (PRP or equivalent status) by
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or other cognizant regulatory agency with authority
to enforce environmental laws and regulations.

Nonattest Services

44. You have provided nonattest services, including the following, during the period of this
engagement:

 Preparing a draft of the financial statements and related notes and supplementary

information

 Preparing a draft of the SEFSA and related notes

 Completing the auditee portion of the Form SF-SAC (Data Collection Form) through the

Federal Audit Clearinghouse

 Completing the applicable sections of the Data Input Worksheet, and uploading of the

same to the North Carolina State Treasurer's website

 Maintenance of tax depreciation schedules

 Preparing entries to convert from modified accrual to full-accrual basis statements

 Uploading of financial statements and compliance reports to the North Carolina State

Treasurer's website
45. With respect to these services:

a. We have designated a qualified management-level individual to be responsible and
accountable for overseeing the nonattest services.

b. We have established and monitored the performance of the nonattest services to ensure
they meet our objectives.

c. We have made any and all decisions involving management functions with respect to the
nonattest services and accept full responsibility for such decisions.

d. We have evaluated the adequacy of the services performed and any findings that resulted.

e. Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.

f. When we receive final deliverables from you we will store those deliverables in information
systems controlled by us. We have taken responsibility for maintaining internal control over
these deliverables.

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 7

Financial Statements & Reports

46. We have reviewed and approved a draft of the financial statements and related notes referred to
above, which you prepared in connection with your audit of our financial statements. We
acknowledge that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements and
related notes. 

47. With regard to supplementary information: 

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the supplementary information in
accordance with the applicable criteria.

b. We believe the supplementary information is fairly presented, both in form and content, in
accordance with the applicable criteria.

c. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information are
unchanged from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of
the supplementary information.

d. We believe the significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement
and/or presentation of the supplementary information are reasonable and appropriate.

We do not issue an annual report, nor do we have plans to issue an annual report at this time.

Transactions, Records & Adjustments

48. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

49. The entity has appropriately reconciled its general ledger accounts to their related supporting
information. All related reconciling items considered to be material were identified and included
on the reconciliations and were appropriately adjusted in the financial statements. All
intracompany (and intercompany) accounts have been eliminated or appropriately measured
and considered for disclosure in the financial statements.  

50. We have everything we need to keep our books and records.

51. We have disclosed any significant unusual transactions the entity has entered into during the
period, including the nature, terms, and business purpose of those transactions.

52. We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been
posted to the entity’s accounts. 

53. We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements and omitted
disclosures summarized in the attached schedule and aggregated by you during the current
engagement are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements
taken as a whole. 

Governmental Accounting & Disclosure Matters

54. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

55. With regard to deposit and investment activities:

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 8

a. All deposit, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, and investment transactions
have been made in accordance with legal and contractual requirements.

b. Investments, derivative instrument transactions, and land and other real estate held by
endowments are properly valued.

c. Disclosures of deposit and investment balances and risks in the financial statements are
consistent with our understanding of the applicable laws regarding enforceability of any
pledges of collateral.

d. We understand that your audit does not represent an opinion regarding the enforceability of
any collateral pledges.

56. The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity
interests in legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly
disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

57. We have identified and evaluated all potential fiduciary activities. The financial statements
include all fiduciary activities required by GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, as
amended.

58. Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) and
classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned)
are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

59. Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported,
and, if applicable, depreciated or amortized.  

60. We have appropriately disclosed the entity’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position/fund balance is available and have determined that net position is
properly recognized under the policy.  

61. The entity has properly separated information in debt disclosures related to direct borrowings
and direct placements of debt from other debt and disclosed any unused lines of credit, collateral
pledged to secure debt, terms in debt agreements related to significant default or termination
events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 88.

62. The entity’s ability to continue as a going concern was evaluated and that appropriate
disclosures are made in the financial statements as necessary under GASB requirements.

63. The supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
consisting of management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparisons, and pension
information, has been prepared and is measured and presented in conformity with the applicable
GASB pronouncements, and we acknowledge our responsibility for the information. The
information contained therein is based on all facts, decisions, and conditions currently known to
us and is measured using the same methods and assumptions as were used in the preparation
of the financial statements. We believe the significant assumptions underlying the measurement
and/or presentation of the information are reasonable and appropriate. There has been no
change from the preceding period in the methods of measurement and presentation.

64. With regard to pension and OPEB benefits:

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 9

a. We believe the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and OPEB
liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

b. We have provided you with the entity’s most current pension and OPEB plan instrument for
the audit period, including all plan amendments.

c. The participant data provided to you related to pension and OPEB plans are true copies of
the data submitted or electronically transmitted to the plan’s actuary.

d. The participant data that we provided the plan’s actuary for the purposes of determining the
actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits and other actuarially determined
amounts in the financial statements were complete.

General Government Matters

65. The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as
amended. 

66. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments,
as amended, and No. 37, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis-for State and Local Governments: Omnibus-an Amendment of GASB Statements No.
21 and No. 34, for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other
funds that are presented as major are particularly important to financial statement users.  

67. Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.  

68. Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues,
general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to
permanent fund principal.  

69. We have appropriately disclosed that the entity is following either its established accounting
policy regarding which governmental fund resources (that is, restricted, committed, assigned, or
unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more than one resource
classification is available or is following paragraph 18 of GASB Statement No. 54 to determine
the fund balance classifications for financial reporting purposes and have determined that fund
balance is properly recognized under the policy.  

70. We have exercised due care in the preparation of the introductory and statistical sections
included in our annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR) and are not aware of any
information contained therein that is inconsistent with the information contained in our basic
financial statements. 

Accounting & Disclosures

71. All transactions entered into by the entity are final. We are not aware of any unrecorded
transactions, side agreements or other arrangements (either written or oral) that are in place.

72. Except as reflected in the financial statements, there are no:

a. Plans or intentions that may materially affect carrying values or classifications of assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resourses, net position or fund

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 10

balance.

b. Material transactions omitted or improperly recorded in the financial records.

c. Material unasserted claims or assessments that are probable of assertion or other gain/loss
contingencies requiring accrual or disclosure, including those arising from environmental
remediation obligations.

d. Events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date through the date of this letter, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, requiring adjustment or
disclosure in the financial statements.

e. Agreements to purchase assets previously sold.

f. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other
arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances, lines of credit or similar
arrangements.

g. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is contingently liable.

h. Known or anticipated asset retirement obligations.

73. Except as disclosed in the financial statements, the entity has:

a. Satisfactory title to all recorded assets, and those assets are not subject to any liens,
pledges, or other encumbrances.

b. Complied with all aspects of contractual agreements, for which noncompliance would
materially affect the financial statements.

Revenue, Accounts Receivable, & Inventory

74. Adequate provisions and allowances have been accrued for any material losses from: 

a. Uncollectible receivables.

b. Excess or obsolete inventories.

c. Sales commitments, including those unable to be fulfilled.

d. Purchase commitments in excess of normal requirements or at prices in excess of
prevailing market prices.

Estimates

75. We have identified all accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements
and we confirm the appropriateness of the methods and the consistency in their application, the
accuracy and completeness of data and the reasonableness of significant assumptions used by
us in making the accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value reported in the
financial statements.

76. Significant estimates that may be subject to a material change in the near term have been
properly disclosed in the financial statements. We understand that “near term” means the period
within one year of the date of the financial statements. In addition we have no knowledge of
concentrations, which refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or
markets, loans, investments, or deposits, existing at the date of the financial statements that

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 11

would make the entity vulnerable to the risk of severe impact in the near term that have not been
properly disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair Value

77. With respect to the fair value measurements of financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities, if
any, recognized in the financial statements or disclosed in the notes thereto:

a. The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management’s
intent and ability to carry out its stated course of action.

b. The measurement methods and significant assumptions used in determining fair value are
appropriate in the circumstances for financial statement measurement and disclosure
purposes and have been consistently applied. 

c. The significant assumptions appropriately reflect market participant assumptions.

d. The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in conformity with U.S.
GAAP. 

e. There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements
and disclosures included in the financial statements.

GASB Statement 87, Leases

78. In connection with the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87), we represent
the following:

a. We have identified a complete population of potential leases as of the implementation date.

b. We have reviewed all significant contracts to identify lease and nonlease components as of
the earliest date of adoption. Allocation of contract prices between lease and nonlease
components are based upon standalone prices or other reasonable factors.

c. Measurements of the lease assets and liabilities are based upon facts and circumstances
that existed at the beginning of the period of implementation.

d. The estimates related to any options to extend or terminate the lease terms within the
measurement of lease assets and liabilities agree to management’s plans for the leases.

e. The discount rates for each lease are based upon what would be obtained by the entity for
similar loans as an incremental rate.

f. The classification and accounting of related-party leases between entities, for which
separate financial statements are issued, have been modified to recognize the substance of
the transaction rather than only its legal form.

g. We have adequate controls in place to prevent and/or detect errors in lease assets and
liabilities on a recurring basis.

h. The footnotes to the financial statements appropriately describe the adoption of GASB 87
and include all additional disclosures required under the Statement.

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Page 12

_____________________________________________
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager

_____________________________________________
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director

Attachment included:

 Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



Appendix B

Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements

City of Goldsboro Report Date November 20, 2023

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



City of Goldsboro
Management Representation Letter
Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental General Business-type Utility Stormwater
Description Activities Fund Activities Fund Fund

Over accrual of unbilled accounts
receivable in the current year 75,586$          75,586$          310,222$        283,329$        26,893$          

Reversal of prior year over accrual 
of unbilled accounts receivable
received in the current year (74,995)           (74,995)           (311,218)$       (284,489)         (26,729)           

Understatement of pension expense
in the current year -                      -                      21,733            21,733            -                      

Reversal of prior year under accrual
of payroll expenses 70,999            70,999            11,960            10,436            1,524              

Net effect of uncorrected
misstatements 71,590$          71,590$          32,697$          31,009$          1,688$            

Net Position/Fund Balances 63,522,866$   21,407,906$   67,271,240$   64,878,667$   2,392,573$     

Net effect percentage 0.1% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%

Effect on Changes in Net Position/Fund Balance
Overstatement (Understatement)

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



PROPOSED 
2024 Goldsboro City Council Meeting Dates 
*Work Session-5:00 p.m. --- Council Meeting-7:00 p.m.

Monday, January 8 
Monday, January 22  
(2nd and 4th Monday of the month due to Holidays) 

Monday, February 12 
(One meeting in February due to Council Retreat) 

Monday, March 4 
Monday, March 18 

Monday, April 1 
Monday, April 15 

Monday, May 6 
Monday, May 20 

Monday, June 3 
Monday, June 17 

Monday, July 15 
(One meeting in July due to the Holiday) 

Monday, August 5 
Monday, August 19 

Tuesday, September 3 (Monday, September 2nd is a holiday – Labor Day) 
Monday, September 16 

Monday, October 7 
Monday, October 21 

Monday, November 4 
Monday, November 18 

Monday, December 2 
Monday, December 16 

Proposed Retreat Dates 2024 
February 20 and 21 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 

**Meeting dates and/or times are subject to change with proper notice. 

w.s. item c



1 of 20 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
NOVEMBER 6, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 
City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on November 6, 2023.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.   Tim Salmon, City Manager requested that Work Session Item a, FY21-22 Audit, be 
moved to the November 20, 2023 meeting, and that Item T, Amendment of an Ordinance, be added to the Consent Agenda. 
Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilman Gaylor, and unanimously carried, Council adopted the 
agenda as amended.  

Old Business. 
Floodprint Projects Update. The following was presented by Travis Klondike, NC State University Coastal 

Dynamics Design Lab.  

Item A



2 of 20 
 

 

 

 

 

 



3 of 20 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 Council discussed the priorities for the projects, the grant cycles, and the expected cost of the project.  



4 of 20 
 

 
An item will be presented with the Consent Agenda asking for Council’s support of the project.  
 
 
Strategic Buyout Program Updates. The following was presented by Maggie Battaglin, North Carolina Office of 

Recovery & Resiliency.  

 

 

 

 

 



5 of 20 
 

 

 
 
Council discussed how properties are chosen, and what properties can be turned into through the program. 

Applications can be found by calling 833-ASK-RBNC or emailing strategicbuyout@ncdps.gov; staff is available in 
Goldsboro to answer questions and meet with interested property owners.  
 

New Business.  
 FY22-23 Year-End Financial Update. The following was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.  

 

 

mailto:strategicbuyout@ncdps.gov


6 of 20 
 

 
 
 Council discussed the problems with collecting sewer charges from customers outside the City and the action that 
could be taken to collect unpaid bills. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, stated that once the amount owed reached a 
certain level, they would likely take legal action.  
 

 

 

 



7 of 20 
 

 
 
Council discussed the bottom line, the fund balance, and the effect of the rate increase on the budget. Councilman 

Gaylor asked when the FY21-22 Audit was expected, and when we could move on to the FY22-23 Audit. Catherine Gwynn, 
Finance Director, stated that a full draft of the FY21-22 Audit is expected on Wednesday, and should be presented at the 
November 20th Council Meeting; we are hoping to be done with the FY22-23 Audit by March 31, 2024.  

 
Goldsboro Union Station History and Update. The item was presented by Erin Fonseca, Downtown 

Development Director.  
 
The City of Goldsboro and the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) began discussing a 

partnership in 2005 to acquire and restore Goldsboro Union Station (GUS), a National Registered Historic Landmark 
located at 101 N. Carolina Street. The purpose was to secure the Station for future reuse as a passenger rail hub and develop 
a multimodal transportation complex to create a seamless transportation hub including Goldsboro Wayne Transportation 
Authority (GWTA), our local transit provider. 

 
NCDOT acquired the property in 2007 with the intent to transfer ownership to the City to enable grant and funding 

opportunities to secure its rehabilitation. The City accepted ownership in April 2009. This partnership led to two grants, one 
provided by NCDOT and another by the Federal Highway Administration, where the City provided matching funds to 
acquire and stabilize the building. Approximately $2.7M has been invested in the building to date, including: property 
acquisition, temporary structure stabilization construction, select demolition, and professional services that resulted in a 
historic finishes analysis, environmental studies, and rehabilitation construction plans.  

 
Additional investment has been made around GUS to further the progress of the transportation hub concept, 

including the construction of the new GWTA facility, funded primarily by a state appropriation, and a 2013 USDOT, 
Transportation Infrastructure Generating Economic Recovery (TIGER) grant. Additionally, site and Walnut Street 
streetscape improvements were completed and funded as part of the 2013 TIGER grant around GUS to improve the viability 
of future use.  Lastly, a new roof on portions of the station, and an Adaptive Reuse Study were conducted through the period 
of 2016 to 2020.  

 
GUS remains a priority for the Downtown Development Department and the City of Goldsboro. Though substantial 

efforts have been made over a 20-year period, the age of the property, weight of the clay roof tiles, and environmental 
hazards, make GUS extremely vulnerable. Without complete stabilization, the reality of rehabilitation is unlikely, resulting 
in the almost certain loss of one of Goldsboro’s most prominent historic assets. With it, the loss of future rail use and tax 
revenue, as well as economic impact to the neighborhood and reduction of property value.  

 
As of January 2023, an appraisal of GUS places the current value at -$791,000. A state appropriation of $2M has 

been given to the City of Goldsboro due to multiple project requests, including GUS Stabilization, which is estimated at 
approximately $1.5M. Additionally, a local advocacy committee has formed to provide concerted private sector support of 
the station’s immediate stabilization needs. The committee has pledged to match the collective investment of the City of 
Goldsboro and County of Wayne towards the estimated stabilization cost of $1.5M. Both, the City and County are asked to 
contribute $375,000 to the effort, bringing their total contribution to $750,000.   

 
This information was presented for discussion and consideration of the City’s support of immediate stabilization 

efforts of Goldsboro Union Station. 
 
 The following was presented by Julie Metz, NCLM. Exhibits A, B, and C were provided to Council during the 
presentation as supporting documentation.  



8 of 20 
 

 

 

 

 

 



9 of 20 
 

 

 
 
 Councilman Broadaway asked what the next step would be. Julie Metz, NCLM, stated that the SUS team is willing 
to raise funds to match contributions from the City and County, if the City wants to stabilize the site. She stated that if the 
City will contribute $375,000, and the County will contribute $375,000, then SUS would raise $750,000.  
 
 Councilman Gaylor asked for elaboration on $2 Million appropriated in the state budget and what role Union 
Station played. Julie Metz, NCLM, stated that a letter was submitted to Representative John Bell requesting funding from 
projects, including the stabilization of Union Station.  
 
 Mayor Ham stated that the next step would be to determine how and when to approach the County to acquire their 
support; those steps should be taken in the next 30 days.  
 

Councilman Batts made a motion to support the stabilization on GUS in the amount of $375,000 from the $2 
Million in funds appropriated to Goldsboro from the state budget. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor, and 
unanimously carried. 
 
 
At 6:47 PM, Mayor Ham recessed the meeting until 7 PM.  
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on November 6, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Father David Wyly, St. Stephens Episcopal Church, provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

  



10 of 20 
 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 
Regular Meeting of October 2, 2023, and the Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of October 16, 2023. The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried.   

 
Presentations. 
Employee/Supervisor of the Quarter. Tim Salmon, City Manager, presented the following awards:  
 

The Employee of the Quarter Award: Jhante Reyes. Jhante Reyes took her creative, customer service skills to the next 
level this summer when she came up with the idea of having a fire camp for children. She wanted to find a unique way of 
reaching the youth in the community.  
 
Jhante spent countless hours researching and communicating with a neighboring department to find the best way to 
complete this mission. The main issue was funding, as she knew we did not have the budget to accommodate such an 
endeavor. She began reaching out to local community businesses for sponsors, and while it took many attempts, the local 
business support began pouring in, between monetary donations, food, and supplies.  
 
Jhante was able to raise over $3,000 in funds to allow these children to come to this camp for free, and learn about fire 
safety, water safety, first aid and CPR, bike safety, and so much more. The children that attended this camp have left with a 
better understanding of how to protect themselves and the ones they love. 
 
Jhante’s work ethic and accomplishments reflect well on herself and the City of Goldsboro. 
 
The Supervisor of the Quarter Award: Chris Mooney. Chris Mooney has been recognized on three separate occasions 
this quarter. The first was by a citizen who tripped on the sidewalk near Chestnut Street and Center Street. She called to 
thank Chris and his team for responding and acting on the issue so quickly, and was also pleased to see they completed 
further sidewalk repairs close to where she fell.  
 
The second call was from within our City organization. Mrs. Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director, called in and 
thanked Chris for the professional job he and his team did in cutting down trees and replacing the damaged sidewalk that 
was causing damage to the DGDC building. Chris and his team saved the City over $2500 by doing the work in house.  
 
Chris also dug up and installed two garage car lifts, saving the City $5000 in installation fees. When we talk about the City’s 
Strategic Plan, and our Vision, Mission, Values, and Goals, this is the kind of employee we envision.  
 
Chris is customer focused, and a superb Supervisor within the Street Division. His professionalism and integrity sets an 
example for all supervisors to follow. His actions reflect well on himself and the City of Goldsboro.    
 

Night to Shine 10th Anniversary. Donna Countryman played a Video and provided information on the Night to 
Shine Event and upcoming fundraiser. On November 19th an Auction Fundraiser will be held at the First Baptist Church 
Fellowship Hall. The 10th annual Night to Shine event will be February 9, 2024. She also provided a flyer with a QR code to 
register to volunteer for the event.  

 
Mayor Ham encouraged the community to get involved in the event.  
 
National Apprenticeship Week Proclamation.  Read by Mayor David Ham. The Goldsboro City Council 

proclaimed November 13-19, 2023 as NATIONAL APPRENTICESHIP WEEK in the City of Goldsboro, and encouraged 
employers to utilize Registered Apprentices when able, in order to train and support the next generation of our workforce. 

 
Kristie Sauls, Executive Director of Apprenticeships and Career Development at Wayne Community College, 

provided information on National Apprenticeship Week, and the opportunities available at Wayne Community College.  
 
Public Hearings.  
Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes (Residential-12 SF CZ to Residential -12 CZ) – East of Country Day Rd. between 

Wheeler Dr. and Davis Rd. (Cont. from 10/2). Rezoning Denied.  The item was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning 
Director.   

ADDRESS: TBD 

PARCEL #: 3600864490/3600861430 

PROPERTY OWNER: Veritas, Inc. 

APPLICANT: John G. Thomas, Sr. PE Thomas Engineering PA on behalf of Nolan Commercial Contractors, Inc. 

The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Residential-12 SF Conditional Zoning District to the 
Residential-12 Conditional Zoning District limiting the use of the property to a townhome development consisting of 89 
units. The purpose of the Residential-12 Zoning District is to accommodate both single and multi-family residential uses 
and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature. Townhomes are classified as multi-family dwellings.  As such, they 
shall have twelve thousand square feet of land area for the first unit with an additional six thousand square feet of land area 
required for each additional dwelling unit. 



11 of 20 
 

Access: Country Day Rd. 

Area: Approx. 16.57 acres 

Townhomes: 89            

North: Residential 12/16 

South: Residential 16 

East: Residential 12/16 

West: Residential 12/ Office and Institutional  

The properties are currently vacant and wooded. 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the Medium Density Residential land-use designation.  
Residential – 12 (multi-family) is not a corresponding Zoning District in the Medium Density Residential land use 
designation.  However, the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan supports higher zoning density for residential development 
with access to City water and sewer services or where plans exist to extend water or sewer service to these areas. 

This is a conditional rezoning proposal to establish a townhome development to allow for 89 lots. The adjacent uses 
are Garden Walk Subdivision, The Commons Subdivision, Freedom Baptist Church, Liberty Pentecostal Holiness Church, 
Country View Apartments, Kingston Place and Brookdale Senior Living Facility. The parcels have direct frontage on 
Country Day Rd. The proposed development will have direct access on Country Day Rd. and Ashley Ave.  

Staff has distributed this proposed conditional rezoning to City Engineering, Public Utilities, Seymour Johnson Air 
Force Base and NCDOT. There are no comments at this time, based off the concept design. If approved, this will require 
Site Plan submittal and will undergo TRC Review.  

Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request based on the fact that this development would not 
be out of character with the overall residential use of the surrounding area. This development would aid in satisfying a 
growing demand for housing in the City of Goldsboro. The availability of water and sewer does support a higher density 
development. 

Staff is recommending the following conditions be placed upon this conditional rezoning request:  

• Two primary means of access shall be provided to the proposed townhome development.  (1) off Country Day 
Rd. (State Road 1569) and (2) Ashley Ave. (City Street) 

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on September 25, 2023, to review and make a recommendation 
regarding the rezoning request to include staff conditions.  The Planning Commission voted 6 in favor and 0 against. 

At the October 2, 2023 Council meeting, City Council voted to continue the public hearing until November 6, 2023.  
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission has 
provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or Council shall vote to 
deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. Council may also 
continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following people spoke:  

1. Jodie Woolard, spoke against the rezoning, due to safety concerns and the amount of road use.  
2. John Thomas, Thomas Engineering, provided an update on the project. He stated they were working on a 

traffic report, and asked the hearing be continued once more to around January 15th.  
3. Jane Mull, spoke against the rezoning, stating the positive affect nature has on health, and the negative affect 

this project would have.  
4. Raymond Smith Jr., on behalf of District 3 residents, stating that the Council should wait for the study to be 

conducted and for District 3 to have representation on the Council.  
5. Shonnette Carraway, spoke against the project.  
6. Chuck Henry, spoke against the project, due to traffic concerns.  
7. Ari Lewis, asked that Council wait on the report from the traffic analysis 
8. Gaston Lewis, spoke in opposition, fearing that if the hearing was continued, the new Council would not be 

knowledgeable about what has been said previously.   
9. Nick Gambella, Coldwell Bank, assisting the developer, spoke to the need for more townhomes, shared traffic 

data, and asked the hearing to be continued.   
10. Richard Woodard, spoke against the rezoning, feeling it would do the opposite of advancing the community.  
11. Pat Lewis, spoke against the development, due to concerns to value of homes and safety of residents.  
12. Brian Taylor, spoke against the project, due to traffic and water runoff concerns.  
13. Barbara Swisher, spoke against the project, due to traffic concerns.  
14. Jeff Hill, spoke against the project, concerned about more than doubling the population in an already 

congested area.  
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

 



12 of 20 
 

A motion was made by Councilman Broadway to deny. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones. Council 
discussed waiting for the traffic study, postponing the public hearing, and clarified what was being denied. Mayor Ham, 
Councilman Broadaway, and Councilwoman Jones voted for the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilman Gaylor, 
and Councilman Batts voted against the motion. By a vote of 3-3, the motion failed.  

 
Council continued discussion on what the process would be if the hearing was continued.  
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews to continue the hearing to January 22, 2024, to include 

readvertisement of the public hearing.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, 
Councilman Gaylor, and Councilman Batts voted for the motion. Mayor Ham, Councilman Broadaway, and Councilwoman 
Jones voted against the motion. By a vote of 3-3, the motion failed.  

 
A motion was made by Councilman Gaylor to deny with the inclusion of the statement that deems this rezoning 

request to be inconsistent. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway. Council discussed. Mayor Ham, 
Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor, and Councilwoman Jones voted for the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews 
and Councilman Batts voted against the motion. By a vote of 4-2, the motion passed, and the rezoning was denied.  

 
Z-15-23 Royal Farms – Store #520 (Wayne County Residential-Agricultural, Light Industrial, and Community 

Shopping to City of Goldsboro Highway Business Conditional Zoning) – Corner of S. US 117 Hwy., S. US 13 Hwy., 
and Carolina Street. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning Director.   

ADDRESS: TBD 

PARCELS #: 2587753500, 2587754563, 2587754329, 2587754313, 2587753294 

PROPERTY OWNER: Carl B. Price and M.B. Price 

APPLICANT: Two Farms, Inc. c/o Chris Bollino 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning from Wayne County Residential RA-20, Light Industrial, and Community 
Shopping to City of Goldsboro Highway Business Conditional Zoning District limiting the use of the property to a 
convenience store with gas sales.  The purpose of the Highway Business (HB) Zoning District is to accommodate highway-
oriented retail and commercial uses which generally serve the entire City and nonresident traffic. The district encourages 
high-quality design, ample parking, controlled traffic movements and suitable landscaping. 

Access: Proposed off S. US 117 Hwy. and S. US 13 Hwy.  

Area: 1.64 acres                   

North: Goldsboro General Business 

South: County Community Shopping 

East: Goldsboro General Business/County Light Industrial 

West: County Residential-Agriculture  

The property currently consists of an automobile service, repair, and inspection facility. 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Medium Density Residential land use designation. The 
Highway Business (HB) Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Medium Density Residential 
land use designation.  

This is a conditional rezoning proposal for a 1.64-acre parcel to be rezoned from Wayne County Residential RA-20, 
Light Industrial, and Community Shopping to City of Goldsboro Highway Business Conditional Zoning District limiting the 
use of the property to a convenience store with gas sales. 

The subject property is situated at the corner of and adjacent to two major highways, S. US 117 Hwy., and S. US 13 
Hwy.  The adjacent uses are single-family residential.  Directly across the two highways from the subject parcels proposed 
for conditional rezoning are convenience stores with gas sales, restaurants, mini-storage facilities, commercial shopping 
centers and Wayne Regional Agricultural Fairgrounds. 

This property is located outside of Goldsboro’s corporate City limits and one-mile ETJ.  In addition to conditional 
rezoning, the applicant has petitioned for voluntary non-contiguous (satellite) annexation.  

Staff has distributed this proposed conditional rezoning to NCDOT. There are no comments at this time, based off the 
concept design. If approved, this will require Site Plan submittal and will undergo TRC Review.  

Although Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends Medium-Density Residential for the property, 
Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request because the proposed use would be consistent with 
existing zoning patterns, compatible with new commercial development and existing uses in the area.                                

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on October 30, 2023, to review and make a recommendation 
regarding the conditional rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 6 in favor 0 against. 



13 of 20 
 

   Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning 
Commission has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or 
Council shall vote to deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency statement that deems this rezoning request to be 
inconsistent. Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Broadaway to adopt the ordinance to approve. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor, and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-61 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 

Z-16-23 Dearing Automotive & Diesel, Inc. (Residential 16 to Highway Business/Office & Institutional-1 
Conditional Zoning District) – West side of US 117 Hwy. between Belfast Rd. and Scale Dr. Ordinance Adopted. The 
item was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning Director.   

ADDRESS: TBD 

PARCEL #: 3601-32-1584 

PROPERTY OWNER: Pate Property Management, LLC. 

APPLICANT:  Jayme S. Dearing 

The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Residential (R-16) Zoning District to the Highway 
Business/Office and Institutional-1 (HB/O&I-1CZ) Conditional Zoning District. The purpose of the Highway Business 
(HB) Zoning District is to accommodate highway-oriented retail and commercial uses which generally serve the entire City 
and nonresident traffic. The district encourages high-quality design, ample parking, controlled traffic movements and 
suitable landscaping.  The purpose of the Office and Institutional-1 (O&I-1) Zoning District is to provide for the 
development of office and community institutions that have similar development characteristics and require locations close 
to residential and commercial uses. This district discourages commercial uses and forbids industrial uses. It is intended to 
encourage the development of office and institutional uses that provide a step down in intensity between highly developed 
commercial districts and nearby neighborhoods. 

Access: N. US 117 Hwy./Peanut Ct. 

Area: 36 acres (Approximately 2.7 acres, not surveyed) 

North: Residential (R-16) 

South: Residential (R-16), Neighborhood Business (NB)/Residential-Manufactured Non-Conforming (RM-NC) 

East: Residential (R-16)  

West: Residential (R-16) 

The property is currently vacant. 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Mixed Use II land use designation. This designation allows 
for a mixture of uses which may have an impact on or produce some conflict with adjacent lower density districts.   

Corresponding Zoning Districts in the Mixed-Use II designation include Office Residential (O-R), Office and 
Institutional (O&I-1), Office and Institutional (O&I-II), and Shopping Center (SC). The Highway Business (HB) Zoning 
District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Mixed-Use II land use designation.  

This is a conditional rezoning proposal for one parcel approximately 2.7 acres to be rezoned from the Residential (R-
16) Zoning District to the Highway Business and Office and Institutional-1 (HB/O&I-1CZ) Conditional Zoning District. 
The subject property is currently vacant. The adjacent uses are predominantly residential in nature.  This parcel has partial 
access from Peanut Ct. and is adjacent to N. US Hwy. 117.  

If rezoned to the Highway Business and Office and Institutional-1 (HB/O&I-1CZ) Conditional Zoning District, the 
applicant proposes to limit the use of the property to an automotive repair, service, and inspection station to include towing 
services with outside storage, as well as a mini-storage facility (permitted uses in the Highway Business Zoning District).  In 
addition, the applicant proposes to limit the use of the property to barber and beauty shops, offices (business, medical and 
professional), tanning and salons (permitted uses in the Office and Institutional-1 Zoning District). 

Staff has distributed this proposed conditional rezoning to NCDOT. There are no comments at this time.  If the 
rezoning is approved, formal comments will be generated once a site-specific plan is submitted for development. 

Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request based on the fact that the proposed Highway 
Business and Office and Institutional-1 Conditional Zoning District would be compatible with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  Although commercial development alongside existing residential neighborhoods should be 
prohibited, office and institutional development is encouraged as a transitional land use between residential areas and 



14 of 20 
 

proposed commercial activities of higher intensity located along heavily travelled thoroughfares in Commercial and Mixed 
Use-1 and II land use designations.   

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on October 30, 2023, to review and make a recommendation 
regarding the conditional rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 6 in favor 0 against. 

   Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning 
Commission has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or 
Council shall vote to deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency statement that deems this rezoning request to be 
inconsistent. Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following people spoke:  

1. Debra Strickland, asked for a hedge and fence to be required, sharing concerns about hearing automobile 
work, and the lighting from the storage units. 

 
Kenny Talton, Planning Director, stated that the UDO required screening and a vegetative buffer, and all lighting would 
have to meet the commercial lighting standards of the UDO, and should not have any nuisances. Mayor Ham asked if 
landscaping would be in the site plan. Mr. Talton confirmed that it would be required on the site plan when submitted.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Batts to adopt the ordinance to approve. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-62 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. No one spoke and the public comment 

period was closed.  

 
Consent Agenda Review. Items H-T on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 

following: 
 
Item H.  HACG Surveillance Camera Cost Sharing Agreement. Councilman Gaylor asked what the term of the 

agreement would be. Mayor Ham stated that it was based on the rental terms of the cameras. Councilman Gaylor stated he 
was glad to see a 3-year term so that down the road the Council could discuss using the funds for an officer instead.  

 
Item I. HOME Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Certification Guide & Application. 

Councilman Gaylor asked how many CHDO Partners we currently have. Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director, 
stated that we currently have none certified.  

 
Item M. Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24. Councilman Gaylor asked how the cap on the statutory limit for 

appropriating fund balance applied when it is PO Rollovers. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, stated that she is trying to 
clarify if the PO Rollovers are separated out, but she is erring on the side of caution. Mayor Ham asked for clarification on 
the inclusion of license plate readers for the HACG areas. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, stated that Chief West had 
provided that information. Tim Salmon, City Manager, confirmed that the cameras were included in the language if the 
contract.  

 
Item O. Award contract for audit services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 to Forvis, LLP. Councilman 

Broadaway stated that it is not a bad idea to change auditors after a time, and asked when we would go out for an RFP for 
24 and 25. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, suggested waiting until the City has an on time audit; perhaps after 24 if it is 
an on time audit. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked if there was anything in the contract about penalties for late audits. 
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, stated there is not, and did not recommend adding such.  

 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All 

items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Councilman Gaylor moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items H-T, be approved.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Broadaway and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:   
 

 HACG Surveillance Camera Cost Sharing Agreement. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Mayor 
David Ham.  

 
The Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro (HACG) has or will enter contracts with Ocean 10 Security LLC for 

the provision of TSUNAMI 306 Surveillance Systems with unlimited and/or “uncapped” internet connectivity and optional 



15 of 20 
 

add-on license plate recognition cameras at West Haven, Fairview, Lincoln, and Park Court Asset Management Projects 
(AMPs). 

 
The City has paid a portion of the HACG Fairview and Lincoln AMPs surveillance camera cost in the past. The 

HACG requests the West Haven and Park Court AMPs be added to a cost sharing agreement. 
 
The Goldsboro Police Department (GPD) and Information Technology Department (IT) have access to all HACG 

surveillance systems for the prevention of criminal activity and solving of crimes.  
 
This HACG and City agreement extends the surveillance camera cost sharing from two to four AMPs at a 50/50 cost, 

beginning the 1st day of November, 2023. The City shall not have any ownership interest in, leasehold interest in, 
responsibility for maintenance, insuring or security or protection of, nor any direct financial responsibility, for any of the 
said surveillance systems or any component thereof. The City IT Department and GPD will continue to have access to all 
HACG AMP cameras for their intended purpose. 

 
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Manager and Clerk to 

sign the Cost Sharing Agreement with the HACG. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-83 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER AND CLERK TO SIGN THE COST 
SHARING AGREEMENT WITH HACG” 

 
HOME Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Certification Guide & Application. Guide & 

Application Adopted. The item was presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director.  
 
As stated in HOME regulations, the City, as a HUD grantee, is required to reserve no less than 15% of its HOME 

allocation for investment in housing to be developed, sponsored, or owned by CHDOs.  A CHDO is a special type of non-
profit organization that meet the following requirements: 

• Has a governing board consisting of not less than one-third low-income persons and not more than one-third 
public officials. 

• Has a 503(c)(3) or (c)(4) ruling from the IRS. 
• Has demonstrated a capacity for carrying out activities assisted with HOME funds. 
• Has a history of serving the community in which the HOME assisted housing is to be located for a minimum of 

one year. 
• Has among its purposes the provision of decent housing that is affordable to low-income and moderate-income 

persons, as evidenced in its charter, articles of incorporation, resolutions, or by-laws. 
     
The City must identify non-profit organizations and certify these organizations as CHDOs using the guidance given in 

CPD Notice 97-11, Guidance on Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDOs) under the HOME Program. 
HUD strongly recommends recertification of CHDOs annually. Non-profit organizations may experience transitions in 
board composition and management. Charters or by-laws may be amended at any given time. Therefore, after the initial 
certification, it is not adequate to assume a certified CHDO remains a CHDO. HUD will monitor the City’s files to ensure 
that CHDO designations are being updated as required.  

  
It was recommended that Council, by motion, adopt the newly developed HOME CHDO Certification Guide & 

Application. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
Public Facilities & Improvements Program Guide & Application.  Guide & Application Adopted. The item was 

presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director.  
 
The City has available funds under the Public Facilities & Improvements Program. Funds are available through 

allocations from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG).  Under the CDBG Program, the City may use funds to undertake a variety of public facilities and public 
improvement projects. In general, public facilities and public improvements are interpreted to include all facilities and 
improvements that are publicly owned, or that are owned by a nonprofit and open to the public. 

 
The Community Relations & Development department has developed a detailed program guide and application 

pursuant to HUD’s CDBG Guide to National Objectives. 
 
Upon receiving the Council’s approval, the Public Facilities & Improvements Program application will be made 

available on the Community Relations & Development’s newly implemented Neighborly Software.   
 
It was recommended that Council, by motion, adopt the new Public Facilities & Improvements Program Guide & 

Application. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
Affordable Rental Housing Development Program Guide & Application. Guide & Application Adopted. The 

item was presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director.  
 



16 of 20 
 

The City has available funds under the Community Relations and Development’s Affordable Rental Housing 
Development Program for qualified developers to submit applications for the new construction or acquisition and/or 
rehabilitation of multifamily or single-family rental units. Rental units assisted with City funds must be affordable to 
families, individuals, and/or the elderly with annual incomes at or below 80% of the area median income (AMI). Funds are 
available through allocations from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Home Investment 
Partnership (HOME) grant.   

 
The Community Relations & Development department has developed a detailed program guide and application 

pursuant to HUD’s Compliance in HOME Rental Projects Guide for Participating Jurisdictions. 
 
Upon receiving the Council’s approval, the Affordable Rental Housing Development application will be made 

available to interested developers on the Community Relations & Development’s newly implemented Neighborly Software.   
 
It was recommended that Council, by motion, adopt the new Affordable Rental Housing Development Program Guide 

& Application. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
Resolution in Support of the "Goldsboro Community Floodprint" Report. Resolution Adopted. The item was 

presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Director.  
 
Through grant funding provided by the North Carolina Office of Recovery and Resiliency (NCORR), the NC State 

University Coastal Dynamics Design Lab (CDDL) recently completed the “Goldsboro Community Floodprint” report. 
 
The study used an environmental and community planning approach referred to as “floodprinting”, which specifically 

highlights the use of place-based approaches in response to natural hazards and climate change. As part of the “Goldsboro 
Community Floodprint,” discrete project phases and scope items included: inventory and analysis, public outreach and 
engagement, hydraulic modeling, schematic planning and design, three-dimensional modeling, photorealistic rendering, 
benefit-cost analysis, and grant-writing. 

 
Created over a 16-month project period, the resulting document is meant to both provide direction regarding feasible 

and sustainable practices within the identified focus areas, while also providing actionable collateral that can be used to 
attract external resources (e.g., competitive grants) towards these projects. 

 
It was recommended that the City Council adopt the following entitled resolution supporting and encouraging the 

advancement and development of projects identified in the “Goldsboro Community Floodprint” report as follows: 
    
• Stream Restoration and Infrastructure Improvements along the Big Ditch; 
• Low Flow Wetlands at the Municipal Golf Course; and  
• Flood Mitigation and Feasibility Study for the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
 
Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-84 “RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE “GOLDSBORO COMMUNITY FLOODPRINT” 
REPORT” 

 
Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, 

Finance Director.  
 
Council adopted the FY23-24 annual operating budget on June 20, 2023.  
  
Agency Support (7310) General Fund 
Council was presented a resolution to approve an agreement with the Housing Authority of Goldsboro to fund 32 

Tsunami cameras and 2 license plate readers located on Housing Authority property at West Haven, Fairview, Lincoln and 
Park Court.  The cost of the cameras will be approximately $95,200.00 each year.  It is necessary to appropriate the 
expenditure in the FY24 budget, and this will be funded with an additional appropriation of payment in lieu of tax (PILOT) 
revenue for $32,184, and the balance of $63,016 from an appropriation of fund balance.  In future years, the payment in lieu 
of taxes (PILOT) received from the Housing Authority of Goldsboro will be used to fund the expense. 

 
Non-Recurring Capital Outlay (7315) General Fund 
Council authorized the replacement of the chiller serving City Hall at the 10/16/23 council meeting.  The cost of the 

chiller is $385,843, and the cost to move the generator for the chiller is $3,690 and to move the fence is $1,673.  It is 
necessary to appropriate the expenditures for the chiller replacement totaling $391,300, and this will be funded with an 
appropriation of fund balance. 

 
Goldsboro Event Center (1020) General Fund 
Council authorized the replacement of the heating and cooling system (HVAC) serving the Goldsboro Event Center at 

the 10/16/23 council meeting.  The cost of the HVAC $19,870.  It is necessary to appropriate the expenditures for the 
HVAC replacement totaling $19,900, and this will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance. 



17 of 20 
 

 
Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance – General Fund 

 
Shared Services & Transfers (8101) Utility Fund 
In order to close out the capital project S1103 Sewer Rehabilitation Project E-SRP-W-17-0110, it is necessary to 

transfer $24,097 to cover engineering costs that were not eligible to be drawn against the SRP loan.  This will be funded 
with an appropriation of fund balance in the Utility Fund. 

 
Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance – Utility Fund 

 
It was recommended that the City Council, by motion, adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY23-24 

Operating Budget for the General Fund and Utility Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-63 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR” 

 
Ordinance amending the Sewer Rehabilitation Project E-SRP-W-17-0110 Project (S1103). Ordinance Adopted. 

The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.  
 
The City of Goldsboro recognized the need to rehabilitate sewer lines in the areas of the Big Ditch Outfall, Carolina 

Street and Cherry Hospital area.  The project encompassed the sewer line rehab of 3,370 LF of 8-inch, 12-inch, and 36-inch 
gravity sewer and included rehab of 15 manholes and replacement of 25 services.  The City received the Letter of Intent 
from the NC Department of Environmental Quality on March 1, 2018 to fund a State Reserve Loan Program.  City Council 
accepted the loan and created the capital project ordinance at the July 15, 2019 meeting.  The maximum loan amount was 
$1,235,100 at an interest rate of 1.82% over 20 years. 

  
At this time the project has been completed, and the City has received all eligible loan draws on the project.  Total 

eligible project costs totaled $682,191, and represents to total loan amount.  The City is responsible for the balance of costs 
not eligible to be drawn on the loan totaling $24,097.  This will be funded with a transfer from the Utility Fund.  This 
project will also be closed once the final sales and use tax reimbursement is received in December. 

  
It was recommended that the City Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance to amend the capital project fund 

ordinance for the Sewer Rehabilitation SRP-W-17-0110 Project (S1103). Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 
Ayes). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-64 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE SEWER 
REHABILITATION SRP-W-17-0110 PROJECT (S1103)” 

 
Award contract for audit services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 to Forvis, LLP. Resolution Adopted. The 

item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.  
 
G.S. §159-34, Annual independent audit, requires each local government to have its accounts audited as soon as 

possible after the close of each fiscal year by a certified public accountant.  The auditor shall be selected by, and shall report 
directly to the governing board.     

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2023 Ord 2023-43 FY23-24 Adopted Budget 1,500,000.00$  
8/7/2023 FY22-23 Purchase Order Rollovers 2,063,324.43    
8/7/2023 Balance of trash compactor for Solid Waste 119,000.00      

10/2/2023 Rebuilding Broken Places NPO 13,616.00        
10/16/2023 Resurfacing Project FY24 154,700.00      

Current Year Appropriations 3,850,640.43$  

11/6/2023 Housing Authority of Goldsboro - fund Tsunami cameras 63,016.00$      
11/6/2023 Chiller for City Hall 391,300.00      
11/6/2023 HVAC replacement at Goldsboro Event Center 19,900.00        

Proposed 474,216.00$    

Current Year with Proposed 4,324,856.43$  

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2023 Ord 2023-43 FY23-24 Adopted Budget -$               
8/7/2023 FY22-23 Purchase Order Rollovers 2,911,751.36    

10/2/2023 Additional appropriation for Lead & Copper Inventory Project 55,060.00        
10/16/2023 Change order Sand Filter #2 Rebuild Project 49,400.00        

Current Year Appropriations 3,016,211.36$  

11/6/2023 Transfer to S1103 Sewer Rehabilitation Project E-SRP-W-17-0110 24,097.00$      
Proposed 24,097.00$      

Current Year with Proposed 3,040,308.36$  



18 of 20 
 

 
In May, 2019 the City conducted a request for qualifications and a request for proposal for audit services for fiscal 

year ending June 30, 2019, and selected Dixon Hughes Goodman, LLP.   
  
 The cost of the audit for the prior fiscal years per the proposal: 
  Fy2020  $53,200 
  Fy2021  $54,500 
  Fy2022  $55,800 
    
 The estimated cost for FY2023 is $70,000.  The complexity of the City’s operations including multiple new grant 

funding sources, as well as the overall increase in costs due to inflation have necessitated the increase in the base fee.  If we 
are not able to garner savings from lapsed expenditures in other line items in the department budget, then we will bring back 
a budget amendment before the end of the fiscal year to appropriate additional funds. 

  
 Dixon, Hughes, Goodman, LLP merged with BKD CPAs to form Forvis, LLP on June 1, 2022.  Forvis (the firm) is 

active and in good standing with the North Carolina State Board of Certified Public Accountant Examiners.  The partner in 
charge, John Frank, CPA, is also in active good standing with the same as a Certified Public Accountant.  They have a 
current peer review and have provided insurance information, Form W9 and e-verify compliance. 

  
 Once approved by City Council, the contract will be executed and sent to the Local Government Commission for 

final approval before any field work can commence on the FY23 audit.  
 
It was recommended that the City Council, by motion, adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the award 

for contract for audit services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 to Forvis, LLP. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / 
Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-85 “RESOLUTION APPROVING FORVIS, LLP AS OFFICIAL AUDITOR OF THE CITY’S 
ACCOUNTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023” 

 
City of Goldsboro/Downtown Goldsboro 2023 Downtown Lights Up! – Temporary Street Closure. Temporary 

Street Closure approved. The item was presented by Major Paige Learnard.  
 
The Downtown Lights Up! is an annual holiday event held downtown to celebrate the “flipping of the switch”, 

officially kicking off the holiday season.   
 
This free, family-friendly event is a community favorite and attracts more than 500 attendees each year.  The events 

will be sponsored by the City of Goldsboro – Downtown Development and is schedule for Tuesday, November 21st from 
5pm – 8pm.  The City of Goldsboro – Downtown Goldsboro is requesting the closure of the 100 and 200 blocks of North 
and South Center Street, excluding the southbound lane of the 200 block of South Center Street/4 spaces of the Johns Street 
parking lot.  The time of the closure for the 200 block of N. Center Street is from 9am – 8:30pm and the remainder of the 
closure will be from 4:15pm – 8:30pm.   

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 

addressed:  
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 
It was recommended that Council, by motion, grant the requested temporary closing of the 100 and 200 blocks of 

North and South Center Street, excluding the southbound lane of the 200 block of South Center Street/4 spaces of the John 
Street parking lot, as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 

Accepting the Distribution of Trusts and Establishing a Perpetual Care Fund for Cemetery Trusts. Resolution 
Adopted. The item was presented by Ron Lawrence, City Attorney.  

 
Fox Rothschild LLP represents financial institutions that currently serve as trustees for trusts that were created for the 

benefit of cemetery plots. They are seeking court approval to terminate these trusts and distribute the assets to the respective 
interested party or parties (i.e., cemeteries and/or charities). 

 
Specific to the City of Goldsboro, a trust was set up in 1967/68 for Simon M. Rosenfeld for the care and maintenance 

of Simon M. Rosenfeld's and Sadie E. Rosenfeld's graves in Willowdale Cemetery and the care and maintenance of the 
Rosenfeld Plot in Oakland Cemetery in Atlanta, GA.  The trust has $36,210.47, plus $70,000 in accumulated income, to 
disperse equally to Willowdale Cemetery and Oakland Cemetery. The gains/interest on the funds can only be expended for 
the care and maintenance of the Rosenfeld plots. 

 



19 of 20 
 

The Finance Department is requesting that Council authorize the finance director to establish a perpetual care trust 
fund for cemetery trusts.   

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution accepting the distribution of trust assets for 

Simon M. Rosenfeld's and Sadie E. Rosenfeld's graves in Willowdale Cemetery and authorize the city attorney to complete 
the petition to terminate the trusts. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-86 “RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DISTRIBUTION OF TRUST ASSETS FOR SIMON M. 
ROSENFELD'S AND SADIE E. ROSENFELD'S GRAVES IN WILLOWDALE CEMETERY” 

 
Resolution of Support to Reduce the Speed Limit for a Section of Throughfare Road (SR 1712). Resolution 

Adopted.  The item was presented by Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager. 
 
Citizens that live on Throughfare Road have attended Council meetings to discuss the dangers of speeding on 

Throughfare Road. Goldsboro Police Department has performed speed enforcement measures to curtail speeding.   
 
The City Manager’s office has reached out to the North Carolina Department of Transportation in hopes of reducing 

the speed limit from 45 mph to 35 mph on Throughfare Road (SR 1712).   Subsequently, NCDOT has requested a formal 
resolution of support be adopted by the City Council requesting the reduction from 45 mph to 35 mph from the railroad 
tracks on Throughfare Road (SR 1712) to Central Heights Road (SR 1709). 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution requesting NCDOT reduce the 45-mph 

speed limit to 35-mph from the railroad tracks on Throughfare Road (SR (1712) to Central Heights Road (SR 1712). 
Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-87 “RESOLUTION REQUESTING A REDUCTION OF SPEED LIMIT BY THE NC 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR A SECTION OF THROUGHFARE ROAD (SR 1712)” 

 
Resolution to Accept Strategic Buyout Properties. Resolution Adopted.  The item was presented by Matthew 

Livingston, Assistant City Manager.  
 
On March 18, 2020, the City of Goldsboro entered into a Cooperative Agreement between the North Carolina 

Department of Public Safety, Office of Recovery and Resiliency (NCORR) to assist in carrying out the ReBuild NC Buyout 
Program by accepting ownership of buyout properties and thereby mitigate disaster risks and reduce future losses.  

 
Pursuant to the NCORR Buyout Program, the City of Goldsboro will accept approved property per Appendix A in the 

"Cooperative Agreement" previously approved by the Goldsboro City Council. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution accepting the Strategic Buyout Program 

Properties and authorize the City Manager to accept properties as identified by the ReBuild NC Buyout Program as listed in 
Apprendix A in the “Cooperative Agreement”.  Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-88 “RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT STRATEGIC BUYOUT PROGRAM PROPERTIES” 

 
Amendment of an Ordinance. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning Director.    
 
Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Goldsboro (Hwy 70) WW, LLC - Located on the southwest corner 

of US Hwy. 70 W. and NC 581 Hwy. 
 
Tax Parcel #:  2671815879 
Acreage:  2.64 acres 
The City Council, at their meeting on March 20, 2023, scheduled a public hearing for the proposed annexation of the 

subject property.  A public hearing notice was properly advertised stating the time, place and purpose of the meeting. 
 
On April 3, 2023, a public hearing was held and no one spoke for or against the proposed annexation. At this meeting, 

Council adopted an ordinance (2023-12) annexing certain non-contiguous property to the City of Goldsboro. In September 
2023, it was discovered that there were discrepancies with the annexation plat and legal description. Staff has revised the 
ordinance to include the correct legal description.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance amending Ordinance 2023-12.  Consent 

Agenda Approval. Gaylor / Broadaway (6 Ayes). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-65 “AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN NON-CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY TO THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
 
End of Consent Agenda. 



t•" 

c  . 

p

O

O .

r > 

p

O

N  

t.
54-' > 

O  

O

N

Q. `+

r, 

Oct

o-° >°,> 

3

a. 

o.

d

U

w= 

y

o

0

o *

9

4

b

o

o

a• 

o

S

o

o

Z

Ctlo
rig

U ° 

a .

d >, 

x °' 

O

to >, °' +' 

N

O° 

O

c 

a> 

4) 

0

4

bq '

4.

p

3

b

Lo— 

O

O

C/) 

Q,.- 

cot8

w

b4

5

p

N +' 

U

O

Cj " 

N

O

Y
O

O ' 

U

s: 

c 

s

O "

0

4.  

N

N

Q +' 

C

y

N

N

s: 

W

bq

O

30. 

o " 

3

0

0

O

tr" 

0

tom. 

Z 

N

9

9b

O

O

0

In

O
c • ^' - 

c

z

O

t4-
1 (

L) 

Q)

M

r

C',

brA -
0

p > .'

t *

6

Y

Wp

bA  

o

m°,°

o

4.)

U

0

to ' 

ai

o , (

1)  

ani

cd

i

y

O

F. '

21

Q

to

O

A . +'  °

3

bU . 

W

0 . >' 

O

A

U5

N

ocC
cd -

W

U

El

po

oa
a

o

5Ei

0

op

6' .

fl  

j

3

A

a

p
q

V

o

a>
i

o

p

as

ao
p

y

a

o

o> 

o

o0

3 °° 

3

0° 

a >

cz

a ' ' 

t 

ol

0

0

0`

d

Q, '

b

v' 

c 

cC

U

f

Q. 

cu

0 > 

G

U " 

Op

fl ^" 

S

vi

oC

O

rOi

O

cC

V " 

O ^

O' 

C> ,

3

1`

3

v> >> '

G

O .

Or00
0

O91a

w



Exhibit A

































































































































































Exhibit B





























Exhibit C









































































































































































































C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Citizen Participation Plan 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

 

 

  



Table of Contents 
INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................. 1 

PURPOSE AND PHILOSOPHY ....................................................................................................... 1 

COMMISSION ON COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT (CCRD) ................................. 1 

PROVISION OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE ................................................................................... 2 

PUBLIC HEARINGS & PUBLIC MEETINGS ................................................................................... 2 

CONSOLIDATED PLAN (ConPlan) AND ANNUAL ACTION PLAN (AAP) .................................... 3 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE & EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) ....................... 4 

AMENDMENTS TO CONSOLIDATED PLAN & ANNUAL ACTION PLAN ...................................... 4 

Minor Amendments ................................................................................................................... 4 

Substantial Amendments ......................................................................................................... 4 

Emergency Amendments .......................................................................................................... 5 

COMPLAINTS & GRIEVANCES PROCEDURES ............................................................................ 5 

OBJECTIONS TO CDBG/HOME CONSOLIDATED PLAN & ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
APPLICATION ................................................................................................................................. 5 

PROVISION OF PROGRAM INFORMATION .................................................................................. 6 

CONCLUSION ................................................................................................................................ 6 

 



 

City of Goldsboro Citizen Participation Plan Page | 1 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Goldsboro, North Carolina has an estimated population of 32,181 (World Population Review). Its legal 
representative and policy-making body is a seven-member City Council consisting of the Mayor and six 
district representatives (councilmembers). 
 

PURPOSE AND PHILOSOPHY 
 

The effectiveness of the Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) is enhanced when both citizens and elected officials 
are aware of its benefits. Elected officials and policymakers benefit from the variety of viewpoints that citizens 
can bring to local government planning in areas such as, affordable housing, neighborhood revitalization, 
self-help, recreation, transportation, human services, public services, and neighborhood organization. 
Citizens benefit from the knowledge that their opinions and views are considered and contribute to the overall 
decision-making process. 
 
While the comments and opinions of all citizens are important, it is necessary for Goldsboro’s low- to 
moderate-income1 citizens, those living in slum or blighted areas, residents of public and assisted housing, 
minorities, non-English speaking persons, and persons with disabilities have the opportunity to be heard. 
These citizens are in most need of supportive services and stand to benefit the most from activities 
undertaken as part of the CDBG and HOME Programs. As such, it is important that Goldsboro seeks to 
include these groups in the decision-making process for activities funded through the CDBG and HOME 
Programs. Goldsboro’s CPP provides the means by which citizens can assist with problem identification, 
propose solutions to problems, set goals and determine priorities, and recommend which projects should 
become a part of these programs. 
 
COMMISSION ON COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT (CCRD) 
 

The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD), one of the primary avenues for public 
participation related to the CDBG and HOME Programs, is an eleven-member volunteer commission of 
Goldsboro citizens, which serves in an advisory capacity to the Community Relations and Development 
Director and Goldsboro City Council concerning the CDBG and HOME programs and other community 
issues. 
 
The Mayor and each member of the City Council appoint members of the CCRD. All potential CCRD 
members must be approved by City Council. All CCRD members serve three-year terms with eligibility for re-
appointment. CCRD members are limited to two consecutive terms. The CCRD meets once a month, and all 
meetings are conducted in an open manner.  
 
The CCRD assists the Community Relations and Development Director and City Council to enhance 
community harmony and promote awareness of Goldsboro’s growing multiculturalism by facilitating 
community dialogue and meetings and coordinating residential and organizational coalitions to address 
community issues and concerns. The CCRD will also serve as a citizen input mechanism for the community 

 
1 Per 12 U.S. Code §1430(j)(13): The term “low- to moderate-income citizen” means any citizen or household who 
has an income of eighty percent (80%) or less of the area median income (AMI). The term “low- to moderate-income 
neighborhood” means any neighborhood in which fifty-one percent (51%) or more of the households are low- to 
moderate-income households. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/12/1430#j_13


 

City of Goldsboro Citizen Participation Plan Page | 2 

and in an advisory capacity to Goldsboro for community development administered programs funded through 
CDBG and HOME Grant Funds. 
 
More information on the CCRD, along with departmental program plans and reports, are available for public 
review at the Community Relations and Development Department within Historic City Hall at 214 N. Center 
Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 or https://www.goldsboronc.gov/cdbg-home-plans-and-reports/. 
 
Citizens are encouraged to refer any comments or questions to either Community Relations and 
Development Staff or members of the CCRD. Copies of the Plan will be made available to individuals/groups 
and can be provided in an alternative format for people with disabilities upon request.  
 

PROVISION OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
 

Besides administering, planning, and evaluating the CDBG and HOME Programs, Community Relations and 
Development Staff provide technical and analytical assistance to the CCRD, non-profit organizations, 
neighborhood/community groups, and interested citizens in building community capacity, developing project 
proposals, and project implementation.  
 
In addition to assisting in the preparation of the CPP, staff also prepare the Five-Year Consolidated Plan 
(ConPlan), the One-Year Annual Action Plan (AAP), and the Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPER) for review by the CCRD and City Council. Staff also assist in the preparation of 
a comprehensive development strategy that includes each Community Development target area and 
describes the types of projects that would have the most significant impact. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS & PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

In order to ensure adequate public comment concerning the activities related to the CDBG and HOME 
Programs, Goldsboro will hold at least two public hearings before the City Council during each program year 
to obtain citizens’ review and answer questions concerning the CDBG and HOME Programs. Additionally, at  
least one public meeting will be held before the CCRD prior to the proposed ConPlan and AAP are published 
for comment. These hearings and meetings will focus on housing and community development needs, the 
development of program activities, and the review of the CDBG and HOME Programs. 
 
Citizens will be notified and encouraged to attend public hearings and public meetings through 
advertisements in the Goldsboro News Argus, radio announcements, social media and E-Mail blitz, and/or 
Goldsboro’s website. Notice of these public hearings and public meetings will be given at least 10 days prior, 
but no more than 30 days prior to the date of the hearing or meeting. The notices will include the date, time, 
and location of the hearing or meeting, a brief description of the purpose of the hearing or meeting, and state 
how persons with disabilities can make arrangements to participate. Public hearings and public meetings will 
be held at times and locations convenient to potential and actual beneficiaries of CDBG and HOME 
Programs. 
 
All public hearings and public meetings will be held at a convenient time and place to facilitate broad citizen 
participation, particularly by low- and moderate-income citizens and residents of targeted neighborhoods. All 
public hearings and public meetings will be held at locations accessible to persons with disabilities and 
provisions will be made to accommodate persons with disabilities. Public notices of hearings and meetings 
shall state that persons with disabilities may receive auxiliary aids or service to effectively participate in city 

https://www.goldsboronc.gov/cdbg-home-plans-and-reports/


 

City of Goldsboro Citizen Participation Plan Page | 3 

government activities by contacting the Community Relations & Development Department, at least five 
business days prior by calling (919) 580-4318. 
 
Upon request, translators will be provided for people who do not speak English and sign language interpreters 
will be provided for hearing impaired persons. Online surveys in English and Spanish may also be used to 
gather resident input on the development of the ConPlan or filled out on paper surveys available at various 
locations. 
 
All citizens will be encouraged to attend public hearings and public meetings related to the program planning 
and implementation processes. Low- to moderate-income citizens and those living in designated target areas 
will be particularly encouraged to attend these hearings and meetings through announcements at 
neighborhood association and community watch meetings and/or by the distribution of information through 
members of the CCRD or Community Relations and Development Staff. 
 

CONSOLIDATED PLAN (ConPlan) AND ANNUAL ACTION PLAN (AAP) 
 

As a CDBG Entitlement Community and a HOME PJ, Goldsboro must submit a Consolidated Plan (ConPlan) 
to HUD at least every five years outlining the needs of low- to moderate-income citizens and special 
populations within Goldsboro and the strategies by which Goldsboro will address these needs. Each year 
Goldsboro must also submit an Annual Action Plan (AAP) stating how the needs of low- to moderate-income 
persons will be addressed with anticipated HUD and Local Funds. Goldsboro will actively encourage public 
participation in the development of the ConPlan and AAP. 
 
During the development of the ConPlan, Goldsboro will consult within the community to set priorities for 
addressing these needs. Citizens residing within designated target areas will be encouraged to comment on 
needs and priorities through existing or newly created neighborhood associations and community watch 
groups. Goldsboro, in conjunction with the Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro (HACG), will work to 
encourage the participation of public and assisted housing residents in providing input to the ConPlan. 
Goldsboro will also provide information related to planned activities that will occur in or near public and 
assisted housing developments to HACG. 
 
The ConPlan and AAP include the amount of funds Goldsboro expects to receive, the range of activities that 
may be undertaken, and an estimate of the benefit to low- to moderate-income citizens from these projects. 
A minimum of one public meeting is to be held before the CCRD prior to the proposed ConPlan and AAP 
being published for comment and one public hearing to be held before the City Council prior to the adoption 
of the ConPlan and AAP to receive comments on the Plans. Notice will be given in the Goldsboro News 
Argus at least 10 days prior, but no more than 30 days prior to the date of the hearing or meeting and will 
include a brief summary of the purpose and contents of the Plans and the locations of where the full Plans 
are available for public review. Any individual or group may receive a copy of the ConPlan and AAP upon 
request. A summary of all comments, and any actions taken concerning these comments, will be submitted 
along with the Plans to HUD. 
  



 

City of Goldsboro Citizen Participation Plan Page | 4 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE & EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) 
 

Each year, Goldsboro must prepare a Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
describing and evaluating the community development activities undertaken during the previous program 
year. Goldsboro will follow HUD public notification and comment requirements to ensure that the public, 
particularly focusing on those citizens residing within designated target areas, has the opportunity to review 
the report and comment on Goldsboro’s community development activities. 
 
As part of the review process, the public will be provided with a fifteen-day review period for comment on the 
report. A notice for the comment and review period will be placed in the Goldsboro News Argus prior to the 
commencement of the review period. The CAPER will also be made available for public review at City Hall 
and a variety of public access sites prior to its submittal to HUD. A summary of the public’s comments and 
reviews will be incorporated into the CAPER upon submission to HUD. 
 

AMENDMENTS TO CONSOLIDATED PLAN & ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
 

Goldsboro shall amend its approved plan whenever it makes one of the following decisions: 
 

1. To make a change in its allocation priorities or a change in the method of distribution of funds; 
 

2. To carry out an activity using funds from any program covered by the ConPlan (including program 
income) not previously described in the AAP; or 

 
3. To change the purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries of an activity. 

 

Minor Amendments 
 

Any minor amendments to the ConPlan and/or AAP will be made administratively and will be incorporated 
into Goldsboro’s CAPER at the end of the program year. A minor amendment is one that maintains the 
integrity of the plan and does not include any substantial change in policy or in funding priorities while still 
maintaining flexibility in meeting the planned goals and objectives. 
 

Substantial Amendments 
 

Citizen participation is required for any substantial amendment made to a previously approved ConPlan 
and/or AAP. The criteria Goldsboro will use for determining a substantial amendment to its ConPlan and AAP 
includes changes in the Plans requiring the reprogramming of more than 25% of the CDBG or HOME 
allocation. 
 
Substantial amendments to the ConPlan and/or AAP will be made available for public comment at City Hall 
and the established public access sites at least 30 days prior to its adoption. A public hearing for the 
substantial amendment will be held before Goldsboro City Council and citizens will be notified of this hearing 
through an ad placed in the Goldsboro News Argus at least 10 days prior, but no more than 30 days prior to 
the hearing. The notice will include the date, time, location for the hearing, a brief description of the proposed 
amendment, and will state how persons with disabilities can make arrangements to participate. A summary 
of citizens’ comments concerning the substantial amendment to the ConPlan and/or AAP will be summarized 
and attached to the amendment upon its submission to HUD. 



 

City of Goldsboro Citizen Participation Plan Page | 5 

Emergency Amendments 
 

In the event of a natural disaster or catastrophic occurrence threatening public health and/or safety, 
Goldsboro may determine the need to make a substantial amendment to the ConPlan and/or AAP to address 
the unforeseen needs of the community. Goldsboro may request and obtain from HUD a complete waiver or 
reduction in days of the required thirty-day public review and comment period for substantial amendments. 
A public hearing for the substantial amendment will be held before the Goldsboro City Council and citizens 
will be notified of the hearing through an ad placed in the Goldsboro News Argus at least 10 days prior, but 
no more than 30 days prior to the hearing. Emergency amendments require Goldsboro appointed officials to 
hold a public meeting for recommendation to, and approval by, City Council in accordance with North Carolina 
Public Meeting Laws.  
 

COMPLAINTS & GRIEVANCES PROCEDURES 
 

Complaints and grievances concerning CDBG and HOME activities should be filed, in writing, to the 
Community Relations and Development Director at P.O. Drawer A-1017, Goldsboro, NC 27533. All 
comments will be initially reviewed by staff and referred to the appropriate City Department or CCRD for 
reply. An appropriate response will be made to complainant within 15 working days. If after review and 
investigation, the complainant is not satisfied with the outcome at this level, they should notify the Community 
Relations and Development Director and arrange a meeting.  
 
If the complainant is still not satisfied with the outcome, the matter should then be referred to the Assistant 
City Manager. Every effort will be made to resolve complaints at the local level, however, if a satisfactory 
resolution of the complaint is not achieved at the municipal level, the complete record of correspondence, 
meetings, and research information shall be forwarded to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) for final disposition. 
 

OBJECTIONS TO CDBG/HOME CONSOLIDATED PLAN & ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
APPLICATION 
 

Objections to the contents of a ConPlan and/or AAP, which are not considered complaints or grievances, are 
to be filed directly with the HUD area office located at 1500 Pinecroft Road, Suite 401, Greensboro, NC 
27407, before or during the ConPlan and AAP review period. HUD will consider objections made only on the 
following grounds: 
 

1. The description of needs and objectives is plainly inconsistent with available facts and data; or 
 

2. The activities to be undertaken are plainly inappropriate to meeting the needs and objectives 
identified in the application; or  

 
3. The application does not comply with the requirements of HUD regulations or other applicable law; 

or 
 

4. The application proposes activities that are otherwise ineligible.  
  



 

City of Goldsboro Citizen Participation Plan Page | 6 

PROVISION OF PROGRAM INFORMATION 
 

Program information is available to all citizens who are interested in learning more about the CDBG and/or 
HOME Programs, or in being a member of the CCRD. Special arrangements will be made for providing 
information or assistance to non-English speaking residents upon request. For special assistance, call the 
Community Relations & Development Department, at least five business days prior by calling (919) 580-
4318. 
 
The records of the CDBG and HOME Programs are public records and must be retained for a minimum of 
five years. However, some records deal with personal income and other information on individuals directly 
affected by program activities and must be kept confidential. Apart from these, all records of the CDBG and 
HOME Programs are available for review by the public at the Community Relations and Development 
Department at 214 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. 
 
Other provisions intended to give interested citizens the broadcast opportunity to obtain program information, 
read, analyze, and comment on Goldsboro CDBG and HOME Programs are: 
 

✓ Department Website: https://www.goldsboronc.gov/community-relations/ 
 

✓ Mailing List: Citizens may request to have their name placed on the departmental mailing list of 
interested parties. Each person on the mailing list periodically receives program information. 

 
✓ Citizen Participation Plan (CPP): Goldsboro’s CPP will be reviewed each Fiscal Year. The CPP is 

made available to any citizen or community organization upon request. 
 

✓ Notification of Significant Program Action: At various points during the program year, significant 
program actions will be published in the Goldsboro News Argus. Such actions may include: 
completion of the CAPER, Notice of Findings of No Significant Effect on the Environment (by project), 
Notice of Intent to Request Release of Funds (from HUD), announcements of public hearings and 
public meetings, and the projected use of funds. 

 
✓ CCRD Meetings: CCRD meetings are typically held the second Tuesday of each month of the year. 

Regular meetings are held at 6:00 p.m. int the Anteroom of Historic City Hall at 214 N. Center Street, 
Goldsboro, NC 27530. Interested citizens should contact the Community Relations and Development 
Department or the City Clerk at City Hal to confirm meeting dates. All CCRD meetings are open to 
the public.  
 

CONCLUSION 
 

Goldsboro recognizes the importance of citizen participation in the formulation and successful 
accomplishment of its CDBG and HOME Programs. The CDBG and HOME Programs can be most effective 
and responsive when citizens are continuously involved. This CPP was designed to serve as a guide to fulfill 
these purposes. 
 
Goldsboro CCRD provides an orderly procedure for input and participation from the general public. It is a 
volunteer group charged with the responsibility of advising the Mayor and Goldsboro City Council as it relates 
to CDBG and HOME Program expenditures and general city issues. 

https://www.goldsboronc.gov/community-relations/


 

City of Goldsboro Citizen Participation Plan Page | 7 

 
The Community Relations and Development Department provides many opportunities for citizens to find out 
about Goldsboro’s programs and to have a voice in the decision-making process. To be kept up to date on 
the activities of the Community Relations and Development Department and the CCRD, call, email, or write 
the Community Relations and Development Staff at: 
 

City of Goldsboro 
Community Relations and Development Department 

P.O. Drawer A 
Goldsboro, NC 27533 

Phone: (919) 580-4360 E-Mail: FDWilliams@goldsboronc.gov  
or visit the Department’s website at: 

 https://www.goldsboronc.gov/community-relations/ 
 

mailto:FDWilliams@goldsboronc.gov
https://www.goldsboronc.gov/community-relations/


D



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 — 8 q
RESOLUTION APPROVING APPLICATION FOR FUNDING OFFERED BY THE NCDEQ DIVISION OF

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR THE LEAD AND COPPER INVENTORY PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has need for and intends to construct, plan for, or conduct a study in a
project described as the Lead and Copper Inventory Project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro intends to request State loan and/ or grant assistance for the project; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs of the project, if
approved for a State loan and/ or grant award. 

2. The Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on completion of

construction thereof. 

3. The Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project a schedule of fees

and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate funds for proper operation, 

maintenance, and administration of the system and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

4. The governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a provision authorizing the
State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of Goldsboro to make a scheduled repayment of the loan, to
withhold from the City of Goldsboro any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local
government unit in an amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of
the loan. 

5. If applying for a regional project, that the Applicant will partner and work with other units of local
government or utilities in conducting the project. 

6. Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager of the City of Goldsboro, the Authorized Representative, and

successors so titled, is hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with
the State of North Carolina for a loan and/ or grant to aid in the study of or construction of the project
described above. 

7. The Authorized Representative, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed to furnish such
information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with such application or the project; 
to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in
connection with the application. 

8. The Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, State, and local
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and funding conditions applicable to the project and to Federal and
State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

9. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
201h

day of November, 2023. 

1

Ha Mayor

Attested b • 

1 aura Getz, City Clerk) 4 • 



E



r--' — 

i•

r4-
4

b

O

y

a3

co '

p

p

O

O

9O
cd

ce

b  

a)  

cd

Q

cd

4.

4Cd
fl

O

O

O

O

F'+ 

cd ;-

4a
N '

C

1:

14+ 

G4

kr)

vM

t0
V -& 

o "

C-) 

N

cd

O

U

o ` 

O

O

o

cd" 

U

F-
4

tel) 

d

U

y

0

N—

C,

3

N

v

p

C;

3 .

b

N

a

cp
t4-
4 .

d . 

o . 

C `

O" 

o

p. • 

a 

o

a

o

a  

03

1-

4 .
fly

v

o" 

A

i

d ` 

d

U

U  

ani

4 >, 

d

U

O

cd

oCdb
No

o

a

c° 

O _

b

crjNcdU

O

O

cd

t-. 

p

O

O ¢' 

0

3

0

N

O

i 

O

b

O

rte, 

cn

t4-
4

d

d

b° 

o

x 

Cd

0

U

U

Cd

E-

4

WD

c° 

0

U

cd

z
c° 

U) 



F



6MNON

0

Cd

4

cd

aS

f 

M "

C

cd

U

U . ° 

U

U

y

0

O

P

p

o

o

r

d

o + 

Cd

a) ' 

U

s- .

0

U

4r

C .

0

o

O

Li '

C

N

C

r

C

p

in

v °

O

UU  

6s  

N

i

v

O

y

U

p 

3

F' 

p .

cd

C

j

o

0

0

0

0

o

U

u

cC

0

0

0

0

0

co co

O'

C

W

a

v 

r

W) 

G

U4:,
q

60q

E» 

sv

ani

LS

U

O

ct

M

03

c

V, 

oC'
s

of
v 

a _ 

a

U

U

O

ci

Q

Cd

Q

Ic

CN
o

bUA

N

C '

C

bA

j   

c

a  

N ,, +""-' 

yam"  • ,`'. 

W  " 

CL. ,  

cn

cts

lu

Qn

o

cd

cc



G



fliN

Q

N

i

R

y
y

U

U

N

O

000

N

O

00

Gn

N

ds

v

N

6'

s 

C

yO

Cl

mv
o

0

0

Cl

00

r

00

O

o

O

Cl

S

U

O

o10
r-  -. 

o0

o

v, 

Cl

g

o

o

S

ri .- 

00

0

W 

S

o

0

0 •; 

4--

i

O

O_ 

w

rn

m

O

M

pp

m [_ 

M

00

V
i

pp

3'• }" 

O

C

D`• 

O

00 [ 

M

Cl

00 

D

M

O

00

l 

M

O

00

O( 

M

U

p

Zi

p

VJ

Cn

y

7 -• 

d' 

N

C, 

O

v 

oo
l 

O

7

N (

O

O

v'
i

oo [ 

O 

D

vi

O

U

N

L

D

v'
i (

71 

D

W) 

W) 

U

tr

y

M

y

0

0

0

0, 

o

o

O

0, 

o

0o

O

O

In

o

oo

O

r- 

m - 

o

v

o

S

00

0  

N

Uj .

p

O [- 

Q

Lr $

N•y'

Gi

o

N

D\ 

O_ 

o

vi

ocM
oo

O

oo

n

O

oo

tl- 

MOm

It

N

g

N

v

CO

Cl

Ncv
W)

v

NL. 

Cd

U

6n

vj

v

6s '

b

cd

O

a> 

v

U

cd" . 

w

O

c 

y

b

a

4, 

v

o

o

Q

d

ci

o

u . 

cD

O

ai

4, 

to

oA

O

to

r. 

O

U

Q

o

aEi

0.  

b

t
c

Ln

g °

o

Gj

U

W

Lz

o '

c

o

V

w

A

U   

U • `..'   

O

ob

W 

i

C,

3F•
zA
o

0, 

21

Ln  

o

b

abi

o

o

W

W°° 

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

y

U

cz

U

u

c

0. 

bzx3
EE

EEEEEEEEEB
pa

W
i-

1 • ^' 

w

t' _ d

o

y

op

oq  

y  

to

x

cn

cz

O

O _ 

c ° _

U 

C

S

5 

T

a°

i °' 

Wo

0

0

0

0 `

o

o` 

o

C ò

yo

G

O

O

O '

L7 ' 

as

C

m

y ' 

v, 

is

is •` • 

O. 

0.' 

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W •

O

o

0

g

02

W

F

SO

UU03



H





















I



o

a 

F" 

C7

ani

o

o

U

ro 

b

z

o
4. , ° 

O

Cd

m

03Q) 

o

lz " 

U

O

Q

4-
4

b

W

U

U

U

M° 

o '

b

Cd0
Lt

v

O° 

M

G

z

CA

U ' 

O

icy" .° 

b°
A

O

W

4-
4

o

O

U
o

ti

o -
d

ai

A -

d

O

b

a 

A4-
4

GQ

U

p
Q) 

tw

CO

U

w" 

U ° 

Q" 

Z

U

QOM
an

Cd

w0
W ¢ 

N

X

0

0

w

p '

on

Cd

4-
4

b

y

y

N

wo" 

ate, 

N

arz  

U° 

0

O ' 

z

N

U  

N

R-! 

p

o ' 

b

O

a

y " 

y

o

z

Cl

O

o

z

N

M

t" IV.uU

b



















































































































































































































































































































































City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

October 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item J



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
October 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  November 2, 2023 
 
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on Oct. 10th.  

The MLK Subcommittee met on Oct. 30th. 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for a regular monthly meeting on Oct. 19th. 
• The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on Oct. 4th.  

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff attended the annual United Way Campaign presentation on Oct. 9th.  
2. Staff attended the Statewide Human Rights/Civil Rights Conference in Wilmington on Oct. 18th – 20th.  
3. Staff attended the Poverty Simulation at the YMCA on Oct. 26th.  
4. Staff attended the Habitat for Humanity annual breakfast at Lane Tree on Oct. 27th.  
5. The department scheduled and held 5 staff meetings in October. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended a Neighborly Software Implementation meeting on Oct. 5th.  
2. Staff completed HOME Rental Inspections at the Highlands Apartments on Oct. 9th.  
3. Staff completed CDBG Rehab. Home visits/Environmental Photos on Oct. 11th.  
4. Staff attended the monthly Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) meeting and Region 10 Coordinated Entry (CE) 

weekly case conference meeting on Oct. 11th.    
5. Staff met with United Way, Region 10 CoC Lead & Region 10 CE Lead, and new Salvation Army leadership at 

United Way on Oct. 13th.  
6. Staff facilitated a public HOME-ARP NCS & SS Information Session on Oct. 17th.  
7. Staff volunteered at a Choice Neighborhood Fall Festival at St. Mark Church on Oct. 25th. 
8. Staff attended a virtual Choice Neighborhood Peer Exchange on Oct. 26th.  
9. Staff engaged in 2 virtual consultations with HUD for the month of October. 

     
• The Department received one (1) housing complaint and twenty (20) requests for assistance for the month of 

October. *Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1 1 1   2 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25 20 20   23 

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
October 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  November 2, 2023 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
         

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

Housing – Mold, Repairs 
Needed, Electrical Issues 

Referred to Legal Aid of NC 

 
Assistance with Resources 
  

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 8 Application provided /Application follow-up provided/Referred 
County resident to Hope Restorations 

First-Time Homebuyer 
 

6 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Financial Resources 
(Food & Gas Money) 

1 Provided Community Resources List & DSS Program Information 

Section 8 Information 1 Referred to HACG 
Housing 1 Worked with Water Dept. to resolve 
Housing/Leaking Roof & 
Mold 

1 Scheduled Intake 

Home Demolition/Fire 1 Referred to Planning 
Legal Advice for 
Wrongful Termination 

1 Referred to Legal Aid of NC 

Total Requests: 20  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
October 2023 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: November 13, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 15 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 14 existing business owners.  

• Social District preparation – Approved in August. Info page has been designed and placed on website. Materials, 
including signs are being designed and quoted. Planned rollout - November 

• South Center Street Development planning. RFQ was extended by one month. Submittals due November 17.  
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. Appraisal was delivered 

in March. Exploring grant opportunities to ease the cost of rehabilitation. 
• State budget appropriation discussions - $300K to DGDC for downtown maintenance, $2M for City, of which 

Goldsboro Union Station should be a priority, among other City needs. 
• NC Main Street conference prep and inventory of downtown maintenance needs.  
• Cont’d Parking Commission discussions. Signage plan has been developed and 80 signs are in production. 
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Continuing to integrate into new website.  
• Staff continuing to work with Choice Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls. Also attending Economic 

Development and Urban Form subcommittee meetings. 
Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Staff is meeting with NC Main Street staff monthly re: 2024 NC Main Street Conference, March 12-14. 

• Planning for Downtown holiday events, including Downtown Lights Up, Holiday Trolley Rides (Nov 28 – Dec 19, 
Tuesdays), Shop Small Saturday (Nov 25) and Holiday Drive-In Movie (Dec 15) 

• Arts Council Grassroots Grant Application Preparation for 2023-2024 grant cycle. 

• Staff hosted/supported the 2023 Downtown Goldsboro Awards Dinner on Oct 13. 

• Staff hosted/supported the 2023 DGDC Annual Board Retreat on October 24-25. 

• Staff assisted with 2 Downtown Arts District meetings/roundtable discussions with the Steering Committee. 

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, Social District Discussions, NCFF Board and 
Planning Mtgs, Transformation Grant Discussion, TRC with Planning. 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• DGDC Merchants on October 3. Board & Committees did not meet due to the Annual Dinner & Board Retreat. 
• Wellness Wednesday – September 27 – November 1 
• Fall Movies Nights – October 12, 26, November 9 
• Downtown Fall Activities including Trick-Or-Treat, October 28 
• Downtown Annual Awards Dinner & DGDC Annual Retreat  

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• HUB Events: First Responders Lunch, Oct 5, Small Batch Craft Market, Oct 7, Fall Movie Nights, Dementia 

Alliance Walk, Oct 21, Ride the City, Oct 21, Harvest Fellowship Community Day, November 18, Downtown 
Lights Up, November 21 

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 
• New Businesses: Jay’s 108 reopened – 108 N John St, Owl-amo Pool Hall – 122 S Center St 
• Coming Soon, The Firm at 156 S. Center;  WOLF Unlimited – 138 N Center; Brick’s Woodfired Pizza – 146 S 

Center St 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers: 15.6K; 113.3K reach  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
October 2023 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  11-6-23 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Final payment has been made to the contractor; 
• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 

• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and will take approximately a year to 

complete; 
• Funding is in the State’s Budget to complete Phase III of this project. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are completed for October 2023. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County; 
• The final report is anticipated for submittal in the Fall. 

 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion December 2023. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• City Council awarded a contract for $2,037,500 to Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Elgin, Illinois on 

October 2, 2023; 
• Preconstruction conference is scheduled for November 16, 2023. 



2 

 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• This project is in the design phase; 
• The Wooten Company has completed 50% of the SCADA integration and electrical design. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Letter of interest scored high with the BRIC Grant; 
• Project has moved into full application submittal stage. 

 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• The resurfacing project consists of resurfacing Carolina Street from Ash Street to 
the railroad approximately 200 ft. north of Vine Street and Vine Street from George Street to 
Carolina Street; 

• City Council awarded a contract for $278,150.95 to Daniels, Inc. of Garner, NC on October 2, 2023.  
 
WRF Plant Expansion 

• CDM Smith and WithersRavenel are working on the feasibility study. 
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
OCTOBER 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: November 8, 2023 
 

 

FY 22-23
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues September-22 Adjusted Budget September-23 Collected
General Fund 7,103,514$      51,984,973$        5,967,107$      11.48%
Utility Fund 5,074,644        26,875,804          6,007,995        22.35%
Downtown District Fund 15,234             112,215               7,128               6.35%
Occupancy Tax Fund 260,234           1,465,450            272,661           18.61%
Stormwater Fund 759,965           2,070,655            412,330           19.91%
     Total 13,213,590$    82,509,097$        12,667,220$    15.35%

Expenditures
General Fund 10,916,857$    51,984,973$        12,385,059$    23.82%
Utility Fund 3,208,593        26,875,804 3,878,885 14.43%
Downtown District Fund 17,955             112,215 7,731               6.89%
Occupancy Tax Fund 97,009             1,465,450 83,582 5.70%
Stormwater Fund 362,997           2,070,655 785,536 37.94%
     Total 14,603,410$    82,509,097$        17,140,793$    20.77%

FY 22-23
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

September-22 Adjusted Budget September-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 3,468,200$      20,647,821$        2,939,391$      14.24%
Charges for Services 6,570,994        30,835,722          7,553,923        24.50%
Revenue Other Agencies 685,399           16,395,317          508,457           3.10%
Other Revenues 1,607,748        3,676,985            742,846           20.20%
Fund Balance -                   7,262,838            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 881,249           3,690,414            922,604           25.00%
     Total 13,213,590$    82,509,097$        12,667,220$    15.35%

Expenditures
Labor 6,270,766$      36,762,960$        7,473,549$      20.33%
Non-Labor 8,332,644        45,746,137          9,667,244        21.13%
     Total 14,603,410$    82,509,097$        17,140,793$    20.77%

FY 22-23 Actual Total 
Collections Actual September-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,249$           937$                     3,710$             
Surplus 81,510$           -$                      305$                

FY 23-24

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 23-24

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 11/3/23 8:15 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 11/12/23 11:27 AM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 10/31/2023 9/30/2023 10/31/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 3,578,033.35$               2,828,595.91$               1,929,067.56$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 5,143,699.30$               4,128,795.83$               7,455,580.96$               3.25%
PNC - Debit Account 1,804.58$                      2,000.00$                      656.02$                          0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 627,760.48$                  627,031.50$                  4,112,104.06$               1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 43,580.79$                    43,387.29$                    252,015.64$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,304,854.98$               9,263,541.98$               8,880,001.68$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,619,303.99$               4,598,794.07$               4,408,555.08$               n/a
Truist MMA 25,208,258.64$            25,138,775.97$            11,018,627.86$            3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                414,259.57$                  0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,364.32$               2,380,344.10$               2,398,026.28$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 342,053.78$                  341,333.66$                  1,869,975.43$               2.51%
Totals 51,249,714.21$           49,352,600.31$           42,738,870.14$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
October 31, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2024.xlsx 10-31-23 11/12/2023 11:27 AM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
City Council Timothy Salmon Insurance Deductible Claims 4,800$                          -$                                    
City Council Timothy Salmon Title Search & Legal Fees -$                              (4,800)$                              

Transfers - Oct 2023 - City Council 4,800$                          (4,800)$                              

City Manager Timothy Salmon Consultant Fees -$                              (1,050)$                              
City Manager Timothy Salmon Codify Ordinances 1,050$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Oct 2023 - City Manager 1,050$                          (1,050)$                              

Inspections Allan Anderson Salaries & Wages Regular 3,936$                          -$                                    
Inspections Allan Anderson Software License Fees -$                              (3,936)$                              

Transfers - Oct 2023 - Inspections 3,936$                          (3,936)$                              

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                              (66)$                                    
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance 3,000$                          -$                                    
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Insurance Deductible Claims 66$                                -$                                    
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Other Training -$                              (3,000)$                              

Transfers - Oct 2023 - PW Solid Waste 3,066$                          (3,066)$                              

Fire Ron Stempien Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Transfers - Oct 2023 - Fire -$                              -$                                    

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Repairs (Insurance Claims) 1,691$                          -$                                    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Insurance Deductible Claims 694$                             -$                                    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Building Maintenance -$                              (2,385)$                              

Transfers - Oct 2023 - Parks & Recreation 2,385$                          (2,385)$                              

Finance Fuel Inventory Catherine Gwynn Diesel Fuel -$                              (9,500)$                              
Finance Fuel Inventory Catherine Gwynn Fuel Island Refurbishing 9,500$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Oct 2023 - Finance Fuel Inventory 9,500$                          (9,500)$                              

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (500)$                                 
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Insurance Deductible Claims 500$                             -$                                    

Transfers - Oct 2023 - Distribution & Collections 500$                             (500)$                                 

Water Treatment Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (1,750)$                              
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Uniforms 350$                             -$                                    
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Equipment Expense 1,400$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Oct 2023 - Water Treatment 1,750$                          (1,750)$                              

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Salaries & Wages Regular 1,400$                          -$                                    
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (1,450)$                              
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Vehicle Fuel 50$                                -$                                    

Transfers - Oct 2023 - Water Reclamation 1,450$                          (1,450)$                              
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Oct 2023 28,437$                        (28,437)$                           
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2023-Oct 2023 108,379$                     (108,379)$                         

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_3.xlsx Transfers Oct 11/12/2023 10:26 AM



Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -October 2023
Reviewed: cfg 11/12/2023 11:15 AM

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                   150,000$                -$                   117,975$          -$                   117,975$          -$                   

HUD CDBG FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$                   976$                  -$                   976$                  -$                   
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                     19,523$                  -$                   19,523$             -$                   19,523$             -$                   
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$                   353,346$                -$                   216,456$          -$                   216,456$          -$                   
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$                   351,643$                -$                   170,649$          -$                   170,649$          -$                   
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$                   354,302$                -$                   87,559$             -$                   87,559$             (0)$                     
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$                   358,697$                -$                   25,149$             -$                   25,149$             -$                   
HUD CDBG FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   20,580$             24,903$             (24,903)$           

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                   100,000$                -$                   96,570$             -$                   96,570$             -$                   
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                   427,303$                -$                   133,792$          -$                   133,792$          -$                   
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                     22,201$                  -$                   22,201$             -$                   22,201$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                     73,557$                  -$                   67,480$             -$                   67,995$             (515)$                 
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                     22,910$                  -$                   22,910$             -$                   22,910$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                   214,732$                -$                   49,554$             -$                   49,554$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$                   245,547$                -$                   28,472$             -$                   28,472$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$                   252,710$                -$                   32,592$             -$                   52,142$             (19,550)$           
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$                   280,171$                -$                   27,467$             -$                   27,467$             (0)$                     
HUD HOME FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   8,820$               15,948$             (15,948)$           
HUD HOME ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                   907,913$                -$                   36,436$             -$                   37,691$             (1,255)$             

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                       4,050$                     -$                   4,786$               -$                   826$                  3,960$               
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$                   1,136,500$       -$                   8,537$               1,127,963$       
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$                   376,000$          -$                   376,000$          -$                   

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                     80,000$                  -$                   32,691$             -$                   -$                   32,691$             
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$                   632,943$                -$                   557,943$          -$                   251,072$          306,871$          

Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$                   5,046,649$       -$                   4,980,164$       66,485$             
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             -$                   6,417,323$       20,355$             6,307,696$       109,627$          

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                     45,636$                  -$                   46,386$             288$                  43,122$             3,264$               
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                     18,252$                  -$                   18,252$             1,615$               16,092$             2,160$               

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 50,000$                     50,000$                  100,000$          150,884$          633$                  8,146$               142,738$          
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$                   274,138$                -$                   276,441$          -$                   127,666$          148,775$          
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$                     21,366$                  -$                   18,408$             -$                   18,408$             -$                   
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$                     47,003$                  -$                   42,435$             -$                   42,435$             -$                   
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$                     34,766$                  -$                   30,381$             -$                   30,381$             -$                   
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$                     23,574$                  -$                   21,266$             -$                   21,266$             -$                   

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 62,183$                     62,182$                  -$                   65,018$             -$                   19,487$             45,531$             
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 87,179$                     87,179$                  -$                   87,179$             -$                   87,179$             -$                   

FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$                   4,982,838$       -$                   4,179,246$       803,592$          
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$                   7,385,809$       -$                   6,527,315$       858,494$          

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, 5Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$                   202,083$                -$                   202,083$          -$                   202,083$          -$                   
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$                   966,688$                -$                   966,687$          -$                   966,687$          -$                   

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$                     25,750$                  -$                   25,750$             -$                   25,750$             -$                   
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 19,681$                     19,681$                  -$                   19,681$             -$                   19,681$             -$                   

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             41,313$             9,304,855$       -$                   5,279,797$       4,025,058$       
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$                   4,851,571$       -$                   8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$                   682,191$          -$                   730,989$          (48,798)$           

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             -$                   489,923$          -$                   489,923$          -$                   
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RehabPrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$                   598,574$                -$                   598,573$          -$                   598,573$          -$                   
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$                   30,000$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                   304,500$                -$                   4,500$               -$                   302,300$          (297,800)$         
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                   101,500$                -$                   1,500$               3,456$               46,356$             (44,856)$           

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$               1,594,366$             -$                   1,861,258$       22,088$             1,223,088$       638,170$          
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install.Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                     265,513$                -$                   233,113$          -$                   265,513$          (32,400)$           
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$                   1,519,536$       -$                   1,517,550$       1,986$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   25,000$             5,000$               
City Fees None Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) (EPA) Private C 10/2/2003 2,037,500$               2,037,500$             2,037,500$       2,037,500$       -$                   -$                   2,037,500$       

Total 82,354,253$             82,578,276$           2,178,813$       50,711,668$     77,835$             44,505,431$     6,206,237$       

Prepared: tlw : 11/7/2023 10:24 AM
INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-10  Oct_1.xlsx Grants 2023-10 Oct 11/12/2023 11:16 AM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
October 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: November 7, 2023  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 75% of the time. 25% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:56.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred 99% of all calls.   
  

  There was 1 Civilian injury, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 3 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Fall Market, Lowe’s Kids Workshop, Career Day at St. Mary’s Catholic School, Trick-
or-Treating Event, and Truck Displays. We reached 328 Adults and 1,149 Children with fire prevention 
materials.  

 
 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415 376 420   313 3130 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4 7 4   5 48 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195 192 215   141 1414 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39 42 45   35 347 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73 61 68   54 472 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104 74 92   79 790 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680 1593 1688   2179 21791 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 5 4 0 0 4   3 25 

Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130 156 93   122 1217 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1  1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
October 
Date Prepared:  November 8, 2023 
 
 
Human Resources  

• Finalized Benchmarking 2.0 report for Human Resources 
• Legal Deposition Preparation 
• Benchmarking positions for WTP, Finance, Fire, & Planning 
• Ongoing Employee Relations 
• Completed Employee Incentive List 
• Meeting with Finance and Pierce to discuss benefit issues and how to move forward 
• State of the Community discussion to discuss and finalize HR metrics 
• Participated in Second Chance Notification Call-In Fair 
• Finalized and approved media release for upcoming Career Fair 
• Corrected & Finalized Benchmarking Data Audit Information 
• NC League of Municipalities Annual Salary Survey 
• Completed Pierce Supplemental Insurance 2024 Open Enrollment - October 16 – 27, 2023 
• Completed BCBS State Health Plan 2024 Open Enrollment - October 9 – 27, 2023 
• Completed United Way Campaign with 30 employees participating raising $7,900.26 
• November 2023 Diversity Training Research 
• Paramount Theatre meeting regarding Façade Construction 
• Completed Holden Temporary updated contract agreement 
• Scan, import, & rename information into Laserfische.  
• New Hire Orientation – scheduled for 11/8 at GEC 
• 2023 Wellness Holiday Challenge – Nov. 1 – 30 
• Assisting FD with Breast Cancer t-shirt sales 
• Reviewing Background Check companies with cost and data 
• Preparing for City of Goldsboro Job Fair – November 1, 2023 
• Currently Receiving Annual Evaluations to be completed by November 15, 2023 
• Preparing for Seymour Johnson Airforce Base Job Fair – November 15, 2023 

 
Safety   

• October City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections.  
• Scheduled a confined space class for Public Works using the Department of Labor Trainer.  
• October 5 – Accident and injury investigation on Center Street involving our bucket truck.  
• Garage corrections were finalized from the OSHA consultation visit.  
• October 9 – Accident investigation  
• October 12 – Meeting with NCFF at DGDC  
• Safety inspection of the TC Coley building.  
• Inspected the Planning Department for possible allergies in the ventilation unit.   



2 

• Inspected Public Safety Building  
• October 17 - NCLM meeting concerning cyber security.  
• October 24 – Teleconference with OSHA concerning the corrections at the city garage.  
• October 26 – Meeting with Fire Chief Stempien concerning the Public Safety Building.  
• October 27 – Attended the Habitat for Humanity kick off breakfast at Lane Tree Golf Course.  
• Field Safety for private contractors  
• Field Safety with crews  

 
Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 160 clinic visits this month.  

 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• 24 routine BP checks 
• 38 Drug Screens (15 were random) 
• 6 random Breath Alcohol Tests 
• 10/3 Hearing Reviews at Public Works  
• 6 Fingerstick blood sugar checks  
• Annual Blood Borne Pathogen training at WTP 10/25 and Compost 10/26 

 
Meetings: 

• After work walk with employees every Thursday at 5:15 (Locations: Center Street or Reedy Branch 
Greenway) 

• Wellness Hike to the Mountain luncheon and drawing event 10/6/23 @ 11:00--City Hall large 
conference room 

• Hearing Booth Calibration with Rob Griggs 10/23/23 
 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• 3 reported cases of COVID positive employees  
• 2 employees started FMLA.  
• 2 Workplace Injuries, both were OSHA recordable.  
• Weekly after work walks every Thursday at 5:15  
• October Nurse Newsletter:“Breast Cancer Awareness” and importance of screening 
• Flu Clinic by Goshen Mobile Medical: @ Public Safety Complex 10/9 and Public Works Complex 

10/18 
• 1 EAP referral 

DRUG SCREENS = 18 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  1 
New Hire non- CDL:  8 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 5 

Post-Accident DOT:  1 
 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  8  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 6 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 2 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  9 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 4 



3 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431 432 425 423 420   428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121 125 126 123 121   106 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552 557 551 546 541   535 
Male  402 402 400 399 412 419 422 421 416 411   410 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133 135 130 130 130   126 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331 332 340 337 
 

328   325 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183 188 193 182 180 183   181 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21 20 18 18 18   18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3   3 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 8 8 8   8 
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37 37 38 38 38 32   39 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138 363 538 339 311   307 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127 185 341 95 426   176 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12 4 12 3 7 1   6 
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1 3 7 2 2   3 
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6 6 8 7 1   5 
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1   1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2 1 
 

2 1 1    1 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9% 1.4% 2.4% 2.4% .05%   1.5% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1 3 2 0 6   3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2 8 2 4 2   3 
Covid Related 13 3 3 0 0 0 1 2 3 3   3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14   14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 
 

2.1% 2.1% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 
 
 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
October 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: November 7, 2023 
 

• Migrated the City to new phone system. 
• Replaced all City desk phones with new devices. 
• Setup new auto attendant messages for City facilities. 
• Upgraded Track-It! Server for IT Support Tickets. 
• Installed ethernet cables for IT Mobile Unit. 
• Completed setup of new GIS servers, migrated current data, and tested environment (not live yet). 
• Migrated city staff to Exchange Online. 
• Setup technology for the DGDC Annual Dinner. 
• Setup Access Control for Public Works. 
• Updated Zoning, Comprehensive Land Use, and Special Use for Planning. 
• Four staff attended NCLGISA Fall Conference. 
• Installed HVAC at IT Mobile Unit. 
• Resolved IVR issues in Inspections. 
• Resolved email archive issues. 

 
 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722 694 847   747 7470 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701 693 769   750 7498 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279 280 358   329  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Oct 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 11/07/23 
 
The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for October totaled $19,510,979. 
New Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: Villas at Adair Place Apts. 
At $7.8M, Express Car Wash at $2M, Food Lion remodels at $1M and 16 new single-family dwellings at $3.5M. 
 
The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $16,089,052. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $97,938.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $5,160 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $5,305. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,640. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 887 inspections for the month.  During the month of October, four (4) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 364 permits were issued for the month.    One hundred and ten (110) plan 
reviews were completed for October. 
 
 
 

 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $36.5 $59.7 $11.8 $19.5 $23.0
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $25.8 $48.6 $7.7 $16.1 $16.7
New Residential $ (M) $1.5 $652K $2.8 $2.6 $4.1 $2.9 $4.3 $3.5 $1.4 $3.5 $2.7
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $10.7 $11.2 $4.2 $3.4 $6.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $61 $81 $53 $98 $55
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 709 747 827 887 686
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 359 463 366 364 369
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 75 74 107 110 69

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
New Residential $ (M) $813K $3 $472K $4.4 $341K $1.3 $0 $300K $3.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.4
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
October 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 11/13/2023 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• October activity included 22 rental/use days, including 11 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 CST Little Shop of Horrors 
 PPAS Reluctant Dragon 
 Arts Council Steven Baddour Benefit Concert to support young musicians 
 Circus on Ice 
 Literacy Connection – Reading Between the Wines 
 The Rocky Horror Picture Show Event 
 Stage Struck Wizard of Oz 

• October cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 2 days, 0 public performances 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

 Façade Elements removed, treated, and reattached by TA Loving 
 Essential HVAC mini-splits improved through relocation of units 
 Wheelchair lift – To be revisited in 2024. 
 Sound System repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund. 
 Roofing and HVAC system investigated for source of minor interior water damage. 
 Fire/sprinkler/alarm inspections complete, minor issues being followed-up 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $62,732:   Labor: $31,762 / Operations: $7,227 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $23,743 
Revenues: $31,322:    Tickets: $12,640 / Building Rentals: $15,665 / Concession: $3017  

 
  

  
 

 

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 FY 24 Total Average

Exp $25,165 $64,018 $37,664 $62,732 $189,579 $47,395

Rev $15,366 $13,492 $19,419 $31,322 $79,599 $19,900

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $110,336 $849,210 $70,768

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $71,398 $542,394 $45,200



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
October 2023 
Prepared By: Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 11/08/23 

 
• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) was used as a site for several high school cross country meets in 

October – 250 participants 
 

• Specialized Recreation reserved the Gym at WA Foster Center for basketball shooting – 18 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted eleven (11) events during October – 960 guests and six (6) City of 
Goldsboro events – 355 guests  
 

• The Ballroom at the GEC has been painted and the plumbing repairs at the GEC have been completed 
 

• Specialized Recreation hosted a Karaoke Day at T.C. Coley Community Center on October 10th – 48 
participants 
 

• Staff at the GEC had to turn away 27 patrons due to dates already being booked 
 

• Senior Card Group Play at T.C. Coley Community Center – 159 participants 
 

• Parks and Recreation Staff along with Travel and Tourism Staff hosted the NC USTA Singles League State 
Championship held October 5th – 8th; tennis courts in Wayne, Greene, and Lenior counties were utilized – 
115+ teams 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in October – 113 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 407 visitors  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during October – 689 participants  
 

• Specialized Recreation participants played Loteria (Mexican Bingo) on October 31st – 48 participants 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT 
N
O
V 

D
E
C 

AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359  $12,152 $30,435 $9,465 $9,609      $16,405 

Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165  2016 2536  1921  1315      2027 

Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384  $8,527  $9,749 $14,049  $22,354      $11,457 

                            
W. A. Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570   $825 $230 $1,210  $1,180      $2,838 

Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308   $2,195 $603  $1,085 $1,695      $1,329 

Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546   2077 1942 2013  2935     2243 

Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741  $19,668 $17,541 $10,287 $10,179     $13,666 

                            
T. C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167  $211 $237 $200  $164     $368 

Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015 $1,015 $80 $490 $710     $727 

Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154   177 197   175 314      186 

Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466  $6,706 $9,164  $6,005  $6,258     $5,863 

                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36   $18 $0  $0 $0     $5 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0  $0 $0   $0 $0     $0 

Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74  166 184   134 373     154 

Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736  $8,627  $5,612  $4,477  $5,627      $7,269 

                            
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082 $8,749  $3,408 $930 $0     $1,751 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400  $875  $700 $774 $0     $275 

Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383 2720  2025  175 164      860 

Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543 $21,611  $15,760  $5,088 $1,245     $8,792 

                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565  $45 $25,540  $1,605  $5,000     $9,691 

Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0  $0  $1,950  $450 $350     $987 

Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222  14380   15290 20025  25168     21392 

Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132 $7,678  $14,900 $12,629 $64,318     $17,893 

                            
Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812  $61,821  $63,590 $57,788  $52,418      $54,092 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208 $31,528 $83,528  $46,397 $56,788     $52,000 

Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120 2110  2076  2153   1825     2011 

Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603 $30,293  -$19,938  $11,391  -$4,370     $2,093 

                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730 $1,659  $0 $0  $285     $727 

Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101   101  0 0 42      83 

Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194 $1,551   $0 $0  $1,443     $989 

                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044  $89,565 $126,773 $73,997 $71,411     $89,196 

TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404  $105896 $156,254 $98,932 $168212     $117,929 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $891,964           

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,179,293           



 

 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 
               

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 
               

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 
               

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 
               

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 
               

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

               

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 
               

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 
               

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269        

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112         

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in expenditures is loan/bond payments 
and electricity for the areas except for our Golf Course.  All these costs are included in our Golf Course Expenditures. 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
October 2023 
Prepared By: Nya Watson 
Date Prepared:  November 14, 2023 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

 
2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 4 0 1 3 5 11 9
Subdivison 3 2 1 3 0 0 2 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 2 1 2 3 4 1 2

Special Use 1 3 1 0 2 2 1 0
Annexation 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Home Occupation 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 2
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 0 3 2 2 3 3 2 0
Staff Review 0 0 2 2 1 2 2 0

UDO Violations
Notice of Violations 4 10 0 0 2

Violations with Payments 1 0 0 0 0

Notice of Violations 
(Require Lot Cut) 0 0 0 0 38 14

Notice of Violations
(Total NOV's Issued) 119 125 9

Grass Cutting 
Payments to Contractor $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,600 $2,295

Unsightly Lot
Payments to Contractor $490.00 $4,600 

Tagged Vehicles 0 1 0 3 4 5

Illegal Signs Removed
56 102 222 156 333 38

Bags of Litter Picked Up
128 303 189 271 189 260

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
 
 
 
 
2022 
 

 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 2 3 1 5 3 0 27 2
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 1 1 0 1 0 11 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 1 3 2 2 3 1 28 2

Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 0 21 2
Annexation - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 2 0

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 1 2 13 1

Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 0 0 2 0 13 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0 85 79 47 64 55 28 4 362 45

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0 $4,565 $2,755 $3,675 $2,924 $1,435 784.00$  $16,138 $2,017

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 9 6 15 18 3 12 177 15

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 266 79 96 45 29 36 1218 102

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 286 198 400 326 422 332 247 114 208 3122 260

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
October 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  November 6, 2023  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for October 2023 was 224, compared to 211 for October 2022. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $344,803 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $178,086 was recovered and property damaged was $28,256. 
 
Officers arrested 68 people and issued 244 citations during the month. There were 5 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There were 6 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0 3   8  
Rape 0       2  1  2 0 0  0 0            0   0   5  
Robbery 2 1     4  1 5 4  2 6 4 4   33  
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 22 22   201  
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12  18 29  24  30  28 27     25    231  
Larceny 112 88     110    114 160  148  135  162 131 153    1313  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16  12 9  9 23 22    16   16    143  
Arson 0 0 0  0  1  0  0 0 2  1    4  
TOTALS 161 134 170  165  226  202  213  241 202  224    1938  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7  
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19  
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41  
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227  
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236  
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314  
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120  
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2  

TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966  

 

 
Revenue collected for October 2023 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  500.00  
 Fingerprints   $      50.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 300.00  
             Total     $   850.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
October 2023 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: November 13, 2023 
 

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 

o Currently implementing Capital Projects for the replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the 
NRPS. 

o The Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed and certified 
 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow 

for October is 7.27-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.70-MGD. This puts the WRF at 61% 
capacity. 
o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Capital projects: Replacement of the underdrain system for Sand filter #2 is in progress, 

Generator at Westbrook L/S, and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System Replace 
Transfer Switches at the Neuse River Pump Station and WTP, Replace Bulk Storage Tank at the 
WRF is in progress, Construction of Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and Replace flow 
meters at the WTP.  

o WRF Is Currently fully staffed with 4 uncertified operators. All scheduled to test for certification in 
December. 

o Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has 
started. The River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations. 
 

Compost Facility 
• One thousand four hundred and thirty-two cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in October 

2023. 
• 1 Compost operator with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 

 

Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each 
month. 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.04 6.10   6.04 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 9.76 7.27   8.70 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 226 1432   794 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 

Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.4 19.2 16.9
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 2.0 1.1 3.0
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 17 29 23.6
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 11 13 15.7
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 1 3 3.8
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 7 6 5.6

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 42 27 42.5
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 51 10 49.6
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 166 60 93.3

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 228 230 237.6
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       92$       79$       74$       79.9

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.04 1.07 1.053
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 23 0 27.8
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.647

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3 5 3.3

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 11 5 16.5
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 34 153 92.3
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 277 300 192.1
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.29 4.1 1.9
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 18.41 15.56 11.1
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 1 3 2.4

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5
32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2
0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
October 2023
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared: 9 November 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds: Christmas lights have consumed a majority of man hours, checking and changing 
GFCI outlets at trees, outlets on light poles for wreaths, outlets for overhead swags,  trimming trees on Center,  preparing 
lights, and hanging lights in Center Street trees. Also completed the replacement of Water Tower lights. 

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 14 after hour calls--total of 27 hours. Completed 99 work orders. Mowed all 
outfalls and now mowing walking trails.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 5 Utility cuts totaling 35.2SY and 153 potholes, 19 trees in roadway, 252 SY concrete sidewalk.   15,566 
LF of small ditches cleaned, swept 300 curb miles, Jet Rod 1,950 LF storm pipe, cleaned 3 Manholes and 9 Catch Basins, 0 Hours of Call 
Duty and 5 dirt streets repaired.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
October 2023 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 11/6/2023 
 

• Total hotel revenue generated in September was $2,184,326 which is down 3.3% YOY. 

October revenue has not yet released. 

• Sessions increased 82% and the average session duration increased 16%, compared to 

August. Compass Media compressed over 200 images on our site and updated our 

wordpress plugins in an effort to speed up loading times.  

• Visitors Guide Photo Shoot with Lynn Advertising – 10/17-10/18 

• Monthly GTC/TDA Meeting 

• Zoom Call with Phenom Sports regarding the Football Tournament in November 

• AJGA Meeting at Lane Tree-10/24 

• Amanda attended Freedom Fest post meeting – 10/19 

 

  
             City Occupancy Tax Collections 

                  September figures have not been released 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2023-24 $90,771 96,122 $82,030           $89,641 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,063 $1,044,224 $87,018 

               

               

               

               
 
 



Item K



K L

hjones
Cross-Out



RSOLUTION NO. 2023- t C) 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF ALLOCATING NC STATE APPROPRIATIONS ACT OF

2023 FUNDING FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

WHEREAS, the NC State Appropriations Act of 2023 appropriated to the City of
Goldsboro: $ 5M for water and wastewater infrastructure from the Clean Water and Drinking
Water Reserve; $ 2M for the Big Ditch restoration and stabilization from the State Emergency
Response and Disaster Relief Fund; and $ 2M for a directed grant from the Regional Economic

Development Reserve; and

WHEREAS, the NC Department of Commerce awarded $ 22M to the Wayne County
Development Alliance (WCDA) for utility infrastructure that enables Mount Olive Pickle
Company manufacturing in the City of Goldsboro. The $ 5M for water and wastewater
infrastructure will complete the final phase of this project. All associated water and wastewater

infrastructure will be accepted and owned by the City; and

WHEREAS, the $ 2M for the Big Ditch will pay for the City' s 25% match of a $ 7. 5M

project that was presented to Council on November 6, 2023, by the NC State University Coastal
Dynamic Design Lab; and

WHEREAS, Council decided at the November 6, 2023, Council meeting that $ 375K of the
unspecified $ 2M directed grant would be appropriated to stabilize Goldsboro Union Station

GUS) if Wayne County made a similar commitment and a local non- profit organization
matched the City and County commitment. Council supports allocating the remaining $ 1. 625M

for a portion of the Public Safety Complex repairs estimated to cost between $ 2M to $ 3M. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the Goldsboro City Council is in support of allocating the NC
State Appropriations Act of 2023 funding for the City of Goldsboro as stated above. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
20th

day of November, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City C k

rid Ha , Mayor




